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RETURN
To an Order of the House for a R e t u r n of all Orders in Council, memorials, petitions
and correspondence relating to the applications of the Vancouver P o w e r Company,
Limited, the S t a v e L a k e Power Company, Limited, and t h e C i t y of N e w Westminster and various municipalities for w a t e r records from Coquitlam L a k e and
T r o u t L a k e ; and of all proceedings before t h e W a t e r Commissioner at N e w Westminster and before members of the Government respecting t h e same, and including
all correspondence between t h e various applicants and t h e i r solicitors a n d t h e
Provincial Secretary's D e p a r t m e n t and t h e D e p a r t m e n t of the Chief Commissioner of L a n d s and W o r k s a n d other D e p a r t m e n t s of Government, and including
all t h e correspondence between a n y parties and a n y and all members of t h e
Government respecting the said applications and a n y of them.
Also a R e t u r n of all Orders in Council and notices or other public docum e n t s in a n y w a y respecting t h e reservation of the waters in question, and stating
t h e dates when each of these Orders in Council or notices were Gazetted.
W. C. W E L L S ,
Chief Commissioner
of Lands and
Lands

and Works

Works.

Department,
5th May, 1902.

GOVERNMENT AGENT'S OFFICE,

N E W WESTMINSTER, Sept. 19, 1901.

SIR,—There are notices of two applications for water records on Coquitlam River, a
stream which conveys the waters of Coquitlam Lake to Fraser River, a short distance above
this City.
These notices have been given by the Vancouver Power Oo. and the Stave Lake
Power Co., and the power derived from the water is intended, in both cases, to be used for the
generation of electrical power. The first application is set down for hearing on the 30th inst.
Coquitlam Lake is a body of pure water situated about 16 miles from this City, having an
altitude of about 430 feet. The area of the lake is about 2,000 acres, and the volume of water
has been estimated at from 10,000 to 26,000 miner's inches.
I t is from this lake that the
water supply for this City is obtained, the works having cost over $450,000.
I am of opinion that the whole of the water of Coquitlam Lake should be reserved
for water works purposes, as provided by section 136 of the " W a t e r Clauses Consolidation
Act." I think the time will come when both Vancouver and New Westminster will require a
larger supply of water than they now have, and the Coquitlam Lake is the most convenient
source for such supply.
Then there is that large area of delta land comprising Lulu Island,
Sea Island, and what is known as the Delta, adjacent to Ladner. No good water has been yet
found on any part of these lands, and it is only a question of time when that area will have to
be supplied with good water from some outside source. The best available source is Coquitlam
Lake.
The area of the low lands mentioned is very large.
The land is of the very best
quality generally, and there is now a large and increasing population.
If the recommendation herein meets with your approval, I beg to suggest that the notice
of reserve appear in the Gazette of next week, so that it may be known and considered when
the applications for water records come before me.
I think the public rights should be protected in such a way that it should be possible to increase the water supply for either of the
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Cities mentioned, or to procure a supply for the low lands referred to, whenever it is deemed
expedient by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council to do so. Water records could then be
granted, if desired, subject to such conditions as might be set out in the notice of reservation.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

D. ROBSON,

Government

Agent.

The Honourable the Chief Commissioner of L. and W.,
Victoria, B. C.

VICTORIA, Oct. 9th, 1901.

SIR,—Touching applications for records of water from Coquitlam Lake and River, and
referring to your letter of the 19th ultimo, I have the honour to inform you that the Government is not at present disposed to place a general reservation on that water such as is recommended in your letter. I t will therefore be advisable for you to hear the applicants when the
time for the hearing arrives, after which you will be good enough to report on the matter to
me before making any record, in order that the same may be laid before the Executive in pursuance of the notice of reservation of water, dated 23rd April last.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

W. S. GORE,

Deputy Commissioner of L. & W.
D. Robson, Esq., Government Agent,
New Westminster, B. G.

VANCOUVER, B. C , 19th October, 1901.

Hon.

W. C. Wells,
Chief Commissioner of Lands & Works,
Victoria, B. G.
RE

VANCOUVER POWER Co.'s APPLICATION.

DEAR S I R , — I n the matter of the Vancouver Power Company's application for water from
the Coquitlam Lake a meeting was held with the New Westminster City Council yesterday,
and it seemed to be the opinion of the Council that the City would have no objection to the
record for 5,000 inches being granted the Power Company, provided the Company agreed to
erect a dam, and to carry the City's intake pipe into deep water. According to the statement
of the City's expert, this work would increase the City's water supply by about 30 per cent.,
and would be worth at least $50,000 to the City.
A t the same time it would entail an
expenditure of at least $20,000 to the Company which I represent, and there would be no
necessity for the dam as far as we are concerned, as we could easily take off the 5,000 inches
we have applied for without erecting a dam, and more than this, the erection of a dam would
enable other subsequent applicants to use the water thus created at our expense. A t the same
time we have every desire to live on good terms with the City of New vVestminster, and
would be willing for that purpose to comply with the City's request, provided the Government
would give us the 5,000 inches we apply for, and then reserve the remainder of the water in
the lake for municipal purposes, allowing no other power company to use the water stored up
at our expense. I believe that the City of New Westminster would be only too pleased to see
such an arrangement carried into effect. I may say that at the present time the City uses less
than 50 inches for its water supply, and by the proposed arrangement more than 5,000 inches
would be absolutely reserved for any increase of population possible, not only in New Westminster, but also in the adjoining Municipalities.
I am in receipt of a telegram from Mr. Horne-Payne, who agreed to finance the Vancouver Power Company, stating that he had raised $700,000 for the power scheme in Toronto and
New York, subject to the granting of 5,000 inches.
Accordingly, as soon as the record is
obtained, the work will be started at once.
Part of the scheme is the boring of a tunnel
13,000 feet long, and involving a cost of some $200,000, nearly all of which will be paid out
in wages locally.
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Knowing the great interest you take in anything calculated to develop the resources of
British Columbia and to circulate new capital among its people, I take the liberty of requesting
you to give this matter your very earliest attention.
The money for its completion being all
on hand, we are only waiting for your decision to go ahead.
Our application will come up before Mr. D. Bobson at New Westminster on Monday,
October 21st, at 11 a. rn., but will, I suppose, be referred to you.
Apologising for not having this communication properly typewritten, owing to the lateness
of the hour on a Saturday night,
I remain, etc.,
(Signed)

J . BUNTZEN,

For the Vancouver Power Co.

VICTORIA, Oct. 28th, 1901.
B E COQUITLAM W A T E R .

SIR,—The Honourable the Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works has handed me your
letter of 19th inst., the subject of which will have most careful consideration when Mr. Bobson's
report of the hearing to be held by him has been received.
I have, &c,
(Signed)

J. Buntzen, Esq.,
General Manager, B. C. Elec. Ry. Co.,
Vancouver, B. C.

W. S. GORE,

Deputy Commissioner of Lands and Works.

VANCOUVER, B. C , 22nd Oct., 1901.

Hon. W. C. Wells, Victoria, B. C.
DEAR SIR,—The B. C. Electric application, and also the New Westminster application,
for water rights came up before Mr. Robson at New Westminster yesterday, and he again
adjourned them, and evidently from the way he talked he intended to deal with the matter.
Apparently he does not understand that this water-power has been reserved, and that he
cannot deal with it unless the reservation is taken off. I am afraid that matters will be considerably complicated if Mr. Robson makes an order with regard to the matter.
Yours truly,
(Signed)

JOSEPH MARTIN.

GOVERNMENT AGENT'S OFFICE,
N E W WESTMINSTER, B. O , October 23rd, 1901.

SIR,—The application of the Vancouver Power Co. for a record of water on Coquitlam
Lake was before me on the 21st instant, and was adjourned until the 2nd November. Sir
Charles Hibbert Tupper, who appeared on behalf of the Stave Lake Power Co., which has
given notice of application for a record of the same water, expressed the opinion that in
this case the evidence should be taken down in shorthand, and in support of that opinion
he produced an excerpt from the judgment of the Chief Justice in the appeal of the War
Eagle, which I enclose herewith. The application of the Vancouver Power Co. for a record
of water on Coquitlam Lake is opposed by the Stave Lake Power Co., and is likely to be
opposed as well by the City of New Westminster, and the Municipalities of Coquitlam, Delta
and Richmond, and I shall be glad to be advised with respect to the question of employing a
stenographer in case the expected opposition materialises.
I have, etc ,
(Signed)

The Honourable
The Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works,
Victoria, B. C.

D. ROBSON,

Government Agent.
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THE SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH COLUMBIA.

Between the War Eagle Consolidated Mining and Development Company, Limited, and
the Centre Star Mining Company, Limited, (Appellants); and the British Columbia Southern
Bailway Company, John A. Turner, Esquire, Assistant Commissioner of Lands and Works at
Nelson, B. C , and the Corporation of the City of Bossland, (Bespondents); and the Le Boi
Mining Company, Limited (parties added by order of Hon. Mr. Justice Martin, with leave to
attend on proceedings and status as directed by said order).
Judgment of the Honourable the Chief Justice on the hearing of the appeal from the
Assistant Commissioner of Lands and Works, at Nelson, B. C.
ROSSLAND, B. C , February 22nd, 1901.
Parties are represented by counsel as follows :—Mr. Gait, for the appellants ; Mr. Daly,
K. C , for the Le Boi Mining Co., L t d . ; Mr. Davis, K. O , and Mr. MacNeill, K. C , for the
respondents.
The Honourable the Chief Justice :
•

i

s

-

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

With reference to the point urged by Mr. Gait, that the Commissioner should have taken
evidence, I do not think that this is necessary where the application is not contested. For all
that appears in the Act, the Commissioner may have, by personal examination of the place or
other means,
*
*
*
satisfied himself as to the propriety of making the record
applied for.
I may add that, I think, in a contested matter the Commissioner ought to have the evidence
taken before him taken in shorthand, and that any person interested is entitled to have a
copy of the evidence furnished to him upon payment of the reasonable charges therefor, and
also to have written statement of the reasons, if any, for the decision of the Gold Commissioner or Commissioner, as otherwise it is entirely impracticable when the matter comes before
a Court of Appeal to deal intelligently with it.

VICTORIA, October 26th, 1901.
S I R , — I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 23rd inst., and
in reply beg to say that I think it will be highly advisable to have the evidence in the hearing
of the Vancouver Power Co's. application for a water record taken down in shorthand. You
may, therefore, employ a stenographer, and at the close of the hearing forward the depositions,
evidence, etc., to me for the information of the Executive, who will decide the matter.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

W. S. GORE,

Deputy Commissioner of L. & W.
D. Robson, Esq., Government Agent,
New Westminster, B. C.

VICTORIA, October 31st, 1891.

S I R , — I have the honour to inform you that the Government have deemed it advisable to
place a specific reserve on the water in Coquitlam Lake and River, and beg to call your
attention to a notice to that effect in this week's Gazette.
This reservation will not interfere with or prevent you from hearing the applications,
which I believe is set for Saturday, and you will employ a stenographer to take down the
evidence, etc., as advised in my last letter to you on this subject.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

W. S. GORE,

Deputy Commissioner of L. & W.
D. Robson, Esq.,
Government Agent, New. Westminster, B. C.
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VICTORIA, November 12th, 1901.
RE

day.
you.

COQUITLAM

WATER.

SIR,—You were, I believe, to have held a hearing on this matter a week ago last SaturSince then I have been expecting to receive your report, but so far have not heard from
Kindly advise me at your earliest convenience.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

W. S. GORE,

Deputy Commissioner of L. & W.
D. Robson, Esq.,
Government Agent, New Westminster, B. C.

GOVERNMENT AGENT'S OFFICE,

N E W WESTMINSTER, B. C , November, 14 th, 1901.

S I R , — I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 12th instant,
asking for report of the hearing of the applications for records of water on Coquitlam Lake
and River,
In reply I beg to say that none of the applications were completed, and an adjournment
was made until the 5th December. The only application taken up at the hearing was that of
the City of New Westminster. I n this case affidavits as to posting notices were put in and
evidence taken as to the quantity of water available. I n view of the fact that notice had
been given by three other municipalities for records of this same water, I held that it would
be necessary for the City to produce evidence showing the quantity of water that it reasonably required, as there were pending municipal applications which must be considered as
provided in section 13 of the Act. As the City was not prepared to produce evidence on this
point the hearing was adjourned until the 5th, when all the six applications will be ready for
hearing.
I have been every day expecting a copy of the stenographer's notes, which I
intended to forward to you, but they have not yet been received. I did not deem it necessary
under the circumstances to make a special report. As soon as the notes have been received I
shall forward a copy to you.
I t has been intimated that the application of the City will be withdrawn before the time
fixed for hearing, but I have had no official notice of that. I n that case the applications of the
other three municipalities will remain for consideration.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

D. ROBSON,

Government

Agent.

IF. S. Gore, Esq.,
Deputy Commissioner of L. & W., Victoria, B. G.

VICTORIA, November 13th, 1901.

SIR,—Your letter of the 9th inst., addressed to the Honourable the Provincial Secretary,
regarding application for water from Coquitlam Lake has been referred to this Department,
and I beg to inform you that it has been decided by the Honourable, the Premier to hold an
inquiry into all matters touching various applications for grants of water records at that place
on Monday next, the 18th inst., at 11 o'clock a. m., at this office.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

J. Buntzen, Esq., General Manager
B. G. Electric Railway Co., Victoria, B. C.

W. S. GORE,

Deputy Commissioner of L. & W.

BRITISH COLUMBIA ELECTRIC BAILWAY CO.,
VANCOUVER, B. C , November 16th, 1901.

W. S. Gore, Esq.,

Deputy Minister of Lands and Works,
Victoria, B. C.:
S I R , — I beg to acknowledge receipt of your favour of the 13th inst. advising me that it
has been decided by the Honourable the Premier to hold an inquiry in connection with various
applications for grants of water record on Monday, the 18th inst. next, at the office of your
Department in Victoria.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

J . BUNTZEN,

General

Manager.

VICTORIA, Nov. 13th, 1901.

S I R , — I am instructed by the Honourable the Premier, who is at present acting Chief
Commissioner of Lands and Works, to notify you that it is his intention to hold an inquiry
into matters relating to the application of various parties for records of water to be taken
from Coquitlam Lake and Biver, at his office in the Parliament Buildings, on Monday next,
the 18th inst., at 11 o'clock a.m., and I am to request that you, or the solicitor for your
Council, will be present with any necessary witnesses and evidence which may lead to a
decision being arrived at with the least possible delay.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

W. S. GORE,

Deputy Commissioner of L. ds W.
F. R. Glover, Esq., City Clerk,
New Westminster, B. C.
Similar notifications were also sent to—
Messrs. McPhillips, Wootton & Barnard, Barristers, Victoria, 13th November, 1901.
John Smith, Esq., Clerk, Municipal Council, Coquitlam,
u
n
A. B. Dixon, Esq., Clerk, Bichmond Municipal Council, Terra Nova, u
u
N. A. McDiarmid, Esq., Clerk, Delta Municipal Council,
n
n
Messrs. Tupper, Peters & Gilmour, Barristers, etc., Vancouver,
n
n

[TELEGRAM.]
VANCOUVER, B. C , NOV. 15th, 1901.

W. S. Gore,
Dep. Com. L. & Works, Victoria, B.C.
Your letter thirteenth absolutely impossible to get ready for Monday Full Court sitting
here send copy Order in Council relating to your notice thirtieth October Coquitlam Lake.
(Signed)

TUPPER, PETERS & GILMOUR.

VICTORIA, NOV. 15th, 1901.
BE

COQUITLAM WATER.

GENTLEMEN,—Replying to your telegram of even date, I beg to inform you that Monday,
the 18th inst., was set for the hearing in this case by the Honourable the Premier, and all
parties concerned have been duly notified to attend on that date. The Premier probably will
leave the City for California on Tuesday, and I regret to say there does not appear to be any
probability of postponing the hearing.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

Tupper, Peters & Gilmour,
Barristers, etc., Vancouver, B.C.

W. S. GORE,

Deputy Commissioner of L. & W.
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VANCOUVER, B. O, 15th November, 1901.

W. S. Gore, Esq.,
Deputy Commissioner of Lands and Works,
Victoria, B. C. :
SIR,—We have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your favour of the 13th inst., in
which you advise us you are instructed by the Honourable the Premier, who is at present
acting Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works, that it is his intention to hold an inquiry
into matters relating to the application of various parties for records of water to be taken from
Coquitlam Lake and Biver, at his office on Monday next, the 18th inst., and requesting that we
will be present on behalf of our clients, with any witnesses and evidence, which may lead to a
decision being arrived at with the least possible delay.
I n reply, we beg to inform you that we represent the Stave Lake Power Company,
Limited, in an application made under the provisions of the " W a t e r Clauses Act," and this
application stands adjourned by order of the Government Agent, Mr. D. Robson, until the
6 th of December next, at 11 a. m.
We have made no application in this connection to the Chief Commissioner of Lands and
Works, and we are not aware, and have had no notice, of any parties who are applying to him
for records of water to be taken from Coquitlam Lake and Biver, nor do we know under what
section of any Act such an application could properly be made. We are of opinion that in
connection with the different applications now pending before the Government Agent at New
Westminster, the Commissioner of Lands and Works has no jurisdiction or authority to
institute any inquiry other than, possibly, a departmental inquiry, and even in this latter
event we know of no decision he could reach in such a case which would affect the rights of
the different parties now properly before the statutory tribunal created for investigating
applications for records of water.
Under these circumstances, your letter takes us entirely by surprise. W e have had no
intimation that any of the parties above mentioned would apply for the intervention of the
Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works, and we submit that if such representations have
been made looking towards a departmental inquiry into these matters, under the circumstances
we have mentioned, our clients would be entitled to be consulted touching the arrangements
for the inquiry, as well as the date when it should be held.
Taking this view, we beg to request that in any event the date for the proposed inquiry
be cancelled, and before another date is fixed we may be advised as to the reasons which the
Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works deems sufficient to warrant his intervention between
the various applicants now pressing their applications before the statutory authority.
We may add that we are without any instructions to represent our clients before the
Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works, and are unable to advise them until you have been
good enough to supply us with the information we have asked for in this letter.
We particularly ask for a reference to the authority under which it is proposed to hold
this inquiry, and what the consequences of such an inquiry are expected to be.
We have, etc.,
(Signed)

TUPPER, PETERS & GILMOUR.

VANCOUVER, B. C , 15th November, 1901.

W. S. Gore, Esq.,
Deputy Commissioner of Lands and Works,
Victoria, B. C.:
SIR, —Referring to our former letter to-day, we now desire to draw your attention to the
subject of it as the facts appear to us.
The Vancouver Power Company, Limited, posted certain notices of application for water
records on the 22nd and 29th August, 1901, stating the application would be made at the
office of the Commissioner at New Westminster.
The City of New Westminster gave notice of a similar application on the 21st August,
1901.
The Stave Lake Power Co., Limited, gave notice of a similar application, and the municipalities of Delta and Richmond gave similar notices.
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All these matters coming before the Commissioner, and it appearing that the proceedings
thereon were stayed, the hearing was adjourned until the 2nd November, and, the parties
appearing before the Commissioner, evidence was given touching the application of New
Westminster, and further evidence being required the hearing was further adjourned to the
5th November, in connection with the application of the corporations, and the applications on
the part of the power companies were adjourned to the 6th December, 1901, to come on before
D. Robson, Esq., Commissioner for the District of New Westminster, B. C.
The view taken by the Commissioner (and we think rightly) was that the applications of
the power companies were stayed until the adjudication upon the applications of the municipalities under section 42 of the " W a t e r Clauses Act."
The Municipality of Coquitlam has also an application to come on, we think, on the 5th
December.
If the Commissioner is correct in his view, we do not understand under what provisions
the matter can be taken summarily from New Westminster to Victoria, or heard prior to the
date fixed by the Commisioner as above.
The applications of the power companies appear to be governed by Part IV. of the above
Act. They are required to make their application under section 84, and this contemplates an
application to the Gold Commissioner. See section 84, referring to section 9, and in any event
the notices given are for such an application, and at the office of the Gold Commissioner and
nowhere else. Whether the application could have been made to the Commissioner and notice
given for hearing at Victoria before the Commissioner, it is clear that an application could
properly be made to be heard at New Westminster before the Gold Commissioner, and as the
notices were given in the latter manner, we submit there is no authority to change the venue
from the Gold Commissioner at New Westminster to Victoria before the Commissioner, for
undoubtedly the whole proceeding is a statutory one, and the provisions of the Statute must
be strictly complied with. We are not prepared to say that the Act does not contemplate
that after the proof of compliance with section 84, more is required at the hands of the Gold
Commissioner than to grant the record, in which event section 85 requires the power company to file certain documents and plans and data with the Clerk of the Executive Council,
and the Lieutenaut-Governor in Council may cause inquiries under section 86 before finally
settling the amount of unrecorded water which the power company may record, etc.
We are not unmindful of the fact that since these applications were made there has been
a reserve of the water in question by notice under section 136, but we have not been favoured
with a copy of the Order in Council establishing this reserve.
I t is provided under this section, and sub-section 3 thereof, that this reservation shall not
prevent the acquiring of interim records subject thereto. We submit, however, that the
proceedings above mentioned are in no way affected except to change the character of the
record which the applicants may obtain under the proceedings which have already been
instituted.
I n any event you will, we hope, observe that it would be obviously unjust that our
clients, the Stave Lake Power Co., shall be summarily compelled to appear with their
witnesses in order to support their own application or to contest the validity of rival applications before the Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works, at Victoria, on so short a notice as
has been given for the proposed hearing on Monday next; more especially as they are entirely
in the dark as to the terms of the Order in Council under which the notice above mentioned
was inserted in the B. C. Gazette.
We also desire to respectfully insist that touching any proposed inquiry at Victoria in
connection with water covered by the application of the Stave Lake Power Co., Ld., we are
entitled to be heard as to the proper time and date for such hearing, and we trust that you
will be good enough to telegraph to us in the event of its being intended to proceed with the
proposed inquiry on Monday next, notwithstanding our protest.
We have, etc.,
(Signed)

TUPPER, PETERS & GILMOUR.
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GOVERNMENT AGENT'S OFFICE,
N E W WESTMINSTER, B.C., November 16, 1901.

SIR,—Mr. A. E. McPhillips, K.C., of Vancouver, called me up on the telephone just now
and stated that he had been notified that the applications for records of water on Coquitlam
Lake and Biver pending before me were to be heard by you at Victoria on Monday next. H e
requested me to let him have the copy of notice posted in my office so that it would not be
necessary for him to take witnesses to Victoria to prove posting. As the copy belongs to the
office, I do not feel at liberty to let it go out, and am, therefore, sending it to you herewith for
use at the hearing if required. There were two notices posted for records for the Vancouver
Power Company, and I am enclosing both of them herewith. One was posted on August
31 and the other on September 28. The dates stamped on the notices are the office date
stamps, and indicate the dates on which they were posted in my office respectively. The pencil
notes on the margin were made by me. There are four other applicants for this water, but I
am sending the notices of the Vancouver Power Co. only, because that is the only one of the
applicants that has requested me to produce the notice.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

D. ROBSON,

Government Agent.
The Hon. the Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works,
Victoria, B. C.
GOVERNMENT AGENT'S OFFICE,
N E W WESTMINSTER, B.C., November 30, 1901.

SIR,—On the 16th instant I forwarded to you two notices from the Vancouver Power Co.
with respect to applications for water records on Coquitlam Lake, and stated that they were
sent at the request of Mr. McPhillips (Vancouver), solicitor for the Company, to be used at
the hearing appointed to take place before you on the 18th inst. As the applications are set
for hearing before me on the 5th and 6th proximo, and these notices should be produced then,
I shall be glad if you will be good enough to return them to me as early as convenient.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

D. BOBSON,

Government Agent,
The Hon. the Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works,
Victoria, B. C.
VICTORIA, December 2nd, 1901.

S I R , — I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 30th ultimo,
and as requested I return herewith the two notices of the Vancouver Power Company with
respect to applications for water records on Coquitlam Lake, which accompanied your letter of
the 16th ultimo.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

Deputy

W. S. GORE,

Commissioner of Lands and Works.

D. Robson, Esq.,
Government Agent, New Westminster, B.C.

GOVERNMENT AGENT'S OFFICE,
N E W WESTMINSTER, B. C , December 7th, 1901.

S I R , — I have the honour to forward herewith copies of the two water records issued to
the Vancouver Power Company, Limited, as directed by Order in Council passed on the 4th
instant.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

D. ROBSON,

Government
W. S. Gore, Esq.,
Deputy Commissioner of Lands and Works,
Victoria, B. C.

Agent.
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VICTORIA, December 10th, 1901.

S I R , — I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 7th inst.,
enclosing copies of the two water records issued to the Vancouver Power Company, Limited,
as directed by Order in Council passed on the 4th instant.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

W. S. GORE,

Deputy Commissioner of L. ds W.
D. Robson, Esq.,
Govt. Agent, New Westminster, B.C.

THE

CITY HALL, N E W WESTMINSTER, B.C.,

December 10th, 1901.
S I R , — I am directed to ask you to be good enough to forward me a copy of the record
issued to the Vancouver Power Co. on Coquitlam Lake, with the conditions attached thereto.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

F. R. GLOVER,

City Clerk.
W. S. Gore, Esq.,
Deputy Commissioner of L. ds W. Dept.,
Victoria, B.C.

VICTORIA, December 12th, 1901.

S I R , — I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 10th inst., and,
as requested, I have much pleasure in sending you herewith a copy of the record (No. 10)
issued to the Vancouver Power Company, Limited, for water out of Coquitlam Lake, with the
conditions attached.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

W. S. GORE,

Deputy Commissioner of L. ds W.
F. R. Glover, Esq.,
City Clerk, New Westminster, B.C.

VICTORIA, December 13th, 1901.
R E STAVE LAKE POWER COMPANY.

GENTLEMEN,—I beg to advise you that I have referred your letter of 12th inst. to the
Deputy Provincial Secretary, as the matters you allude to have been dealt with by the
Executive Council and not by this Department.
I have, f&c,
(Signed)

s. Tupper, Peters ds Gilmour,
Barristers, etc., Vancouver, B. C.

W . S. GORE,

Deputy Commissioner of L. ds W.
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Re Stave Lake Power Company,
Vancouver Power Company,
New Westminster City,
The Coquitlam Water Works Company,
Municipality of Coquitlam,
Municipality of Richmond, and
Municipality of Delta.
Represented by—
Mr. C. Wilson, K. C.;
Messrs. L. G. McPhillips, K. C , and A. E. McPhillips;
Alderman J. C. Brown and F. Glover;
Mr. C. E. Pooley, K. C.;
Mr. Bobertson; all in the order named.
Present for the Executive—
Hon. D. M. Eberts and Hon. J. D. Prentice.
Mr. Eberts : We have met here to-day with reference to an application, or several applications, for water rights on Coquitlam Lake. The waters of that lake were reserved by the
Local Government, I think, some time in the month of April, 1901, and there was a further
reservation, which appears in the Gazette in the month of October, about the 30th, 1901.
We understand there are a number of rival applicants for this water for municipal and power
purposes, and the intention of the Government was to call all these people together in order
that the different rights might be examined into; and accordingly, under the powers vested in
the Lieutenant-Governor in Council by section 136 of the " W a t e r Clauses Consolidation Act,"
the waters were reserved to a certain extent by the reserve of the 23rd April, 1901, and that
reserve was only amplified by the reserve of October 30th, 1901. I would suggest, therefore,
that proper and correct evidence be taken, as if this were starting from the beginning.
Mr. Pooley : There was evidence taken before Mr. Robson at New Westminster.
Mr. McPhillips : The only evidence taken was with regard to the application of the City
of New Westminster.
Mr. Wilson: Now that I know that the question is to be dealt with by the Executive
under section 136, I would like to know if it is the intention of the Government to deal with
this thing, so that I may be in a position to advise upon it. I imagined from the letter which
was written to Tupper, Peters & Gilmour, that the inquiry would be of a departmental character;
but we are not prepared to go on with a matter of this kind on but four days' notice. The
counsel that should have appeared on this application pointed out to Mr. Gore that some communication should have been made to them, more than four days' notice, to give them an
opportunity to prepare for a thing of this kind. The matter has been before Mr. Robson, and
adjourned until some time in December, for the very good reason that some of the applications
of the Municipalities are not yet ripe for hearing. That being the case, I fail to see, with all
due respect to you, how you are going to adjudicate upon the matters here in question.
Mr. Eberts : We start out with the proposition that these waters are waters of the Crown ;
therefore, starting out with that proposition, and being reserved in the way that they are, the
Crown has the right to deal with them under and through the Lieutenant-Governor in Council.
I t was thought advisable, under all the circumstances, that this was the proper tribunal to have
all the parties before, and accordingly that notice was sent out.
Mr. Wilson: You see we got the notice on the 14th instant, and this is the 18th; the Full
Court is sitting, and when a man is busy it is not usual to crowd things in this way. Among
professional men, we generally arrange these things to suit one another's convenience.
Mr. Eberts : Of course I quite agree with you in so far as that point is concerned, but
you must not lay it altogether to me this shortness of notice, because I happen to be a legal
man. This notice did not emanate from me, it emanated from the Government of British
Columbia. Had it emanated from the Attorney-General's Office, I might have had something
to say on the point you raise. But don't you think, Mr. Wilson, as there are so many gentlemen here to-day, that your application for an adjournment might stand over, and we go on and
take the evidence. You see the evidence is all here. Don't you think it would be a good idea
to hear all the evidence we have here, and then if you conclude to ask for an adjournment then
that could be considered.
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Mr. Wilson : I quite see the fairness of your suggestion, but, after all, I might point out
that I think, with all deference, you have no jurisdiction to sit here and adjudicate upon anybody's rights under section 136, particularly under existing circumstances.
Mr. Eberts : Would not that objection be a matter for argument later on also.
Mr. Wilson : If I am right, is it worth while to consume time taking evidence 1
Mr. Pooley: I beg to support the suggestion of my learned friend, Mr. Wilson.
The
Coquitlam Water Works Company, whom I represent, received no notice whatever, and they
are the principal parties interested in this matter; they had no notice of the hearing before
Mr. Bobson, until this morning here about ten o'clock. I t was then that one of the members of
the Company came to instruct me to appear before the Executive Council. I t was a most
unusual thing for this hearing to have taken place at New Westminster without this Company
having notice.
Mr. McPhillips : We have done all that the statute requires us to do; the statute makes
what we have done notice to everybody; that being so, Mr. Pooley is not in a position to say
he has had no notice. But as a matter of fact, I happen to know that at least one of the
Directors of that Company has been fully aware of what went on all the time; he lives in New
Westminster, and has discussed this thing with different parties interested. If it is necessary
I can prove that. I was going to add that the Stave Lake Power Company has no standing
whatever to ask for an adjournment. I t was not on account of the application of the Stave
Lake Power Company that Mr. Bobson adjourned the hearing, but it was by reason of the
applications of certain Municipalities for records of some of this water not being ready for
hearing that the adjournment was taken.
Mr. Bobertson : Mr. Pooley's position is exactly my position; I have not had sufficient
notice, and am not in a position to go on at all this morning.
Mr. Prentice : This thing may go on indefinitely.
Mr. McPhillips: These parties are not bona fide; the desire is to throw the thing over
from day to day ; that has been the practice all along, and will be.
Mr. Eberts : Your objection, Mr. Wilson, is that the Counsel for the Stave Lake Power
Company is in the Appellate Court at Vancouver, and you are not ready to go on.
Mr. Wilson : That is one objection, and another, and a particular one, is that the notice
is unusully short and we have not had an opportunity of getting our witnesses together and
bringing our evidence to place before you.
Mr. Prentice : Have you any witnesses to bring 1
Mr. Wilson : I am so instructed, sir.
Mr. E b e r t s : We had better go on.
Mr. Wilson: Another objection is that the Order in Council does not give you authority
to deal with a matter of this kind under section 136. I will read it to you (reads). You will
see from that that the authorities conferred upon the Lieutenant-Governor in Council are put
disjunctively. The intention of the Legislature was not by this clause to give comprehensive
jurisdiction to the Lieutenant-Governor in Council to reserve water for either a limited area
or for the whole Province, unless it is at the same time stated the purpose for which it was
intended to be reserved. And then sub-section (2) (reads). Now neither of these Orders in
Council comply with that very necessary provision. Then I don't think that I need trouble
with sub-section (3), but sub-section (4), "where any reservation of unrecorded water is made
as aforesaid, the Lieutenant-Governor in Council may, in the Order in Council making such
reserve
*
*
*
specify and declare the terms and conditions" and so on.
That does not confer on the Lieutenant-Governor in Council jurisdiction to sit in council and
adjudicate upon the rights of parties, to sit in a quasi-judicial capacity; the rights of the
parties, so far as the judicial determination of the thing is concerned, is still left to the Commissioner; that is the proper tribunal for rightfully ascertaining whether or not the record
shall be granted.
All that the Lieutenant-Governor in Council may do is to specify and
declare the terms and conditions upon which this unrecorded water shall be applied. Apart
from that, if you will look at section 42, you will see that Mr. Robson has curiously enough
done that which the statute provides he shall do. Part I I I . is in regard to the supplying of
water by water works systems to municipalities, towns and other localities. All claims to the
water shall be stayed until the adjudication upon the application of a municipality. There is
a statutory bar to anything being done until the application of a municipality has been heard
and determined. Now, sir, the effect of that is that the matter came before Mr. Bobson and
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some of these municipalities raised the objection that their applications were not ripe for
hearing. Mr. Robson then says: I am bound to adjourn all these applications. Now, I hope
I shall not be considered as raising any captious objections, but that Statute must be followed,
and there is no power outside of it.
Mr. Eberts: I had a great deal to do with the construction of this Act. Now, under the
old Mining Act you had to do certain things, and under section 9 of this Act, the same thing
has to be done. The general principle of the Water Clauses Act was this, and the whole
intention of the Crown in reserving water is this: That the first thing you look to in the
disposition of water is the preservation of human life for domestic purposes, and therefore that
section 42 was drawn to give municipalities the first show. Next you will find that agricultural
purposes are protected ; the next you will find is that water may be taken for mining purposes,
and then for industrial purposes.
Mr. Wilson: I am unwilling to contradict you so far as section 42 is concerned, but I beg
to differ with you that section 136 confers any judicial power. The application has still to be
dealt with by the Commissioner.
You may sit as an Executive Council and prescribe the
terms and conditions upon which that water may be recorded, but the application is not heard
by you but by the Commissioner.
Mr. Eberts: We are not sitting in a quasi-judicial capacity, but if you will read that
notice you will find that the inquiry is to be held here. You are here before us to-day, not as
a judicial body, but before the members of the Executive, who will inquire as to the merits or
demerits of certain people who are applying for water from Coquitlam Lake, and from the
evidence to be put before us we shall decide to what, if any, water they are entitled, and what
security they shall put up, and to see that the municipalities are protected, and in order to do
that the best evidence will be that of the engineers who are to construct the works proposed
to be done.
Mr. Wilson: Is not that after all judicial. What you are seeking to do now is the very
thing which section 85 prescribes you may do after the Commissioner makes his adjudication.
I t is then, and before the company can do a single thing, that the whole matter comes before
the Executive Council.
Mr. McPhillips: I t is impossible for the Executive to make an Order in Council without
having the facts before them, and how can they have the facts without hearing them? Now,
as I was going to point out, the other sections after 9 apply to us here. I took the objection
before the Commissioner, and I wish to raise it here again. Section 84 only brings in section
9 along with this part of the Water Clauses Act. I t is under section 85 then that you go on,
and under that all the matter would be laid before you, and upon 86 you would make your
adjudication.
Mr. Eberts: That is with reference to instructions before any works.
Mr. M'cPhillips: At any rate the other sections do not apply at all. Nothing but section
9 applies to this part, therefore you must get the evidence before you in some way.
Mr. Wilson: If that argument were true, there is no power under the sun to grant water to
the company. If you will look at section 85 you will find that the powers given are practically
an appeal, a revising jurisdiction, in other words, after the Commissioner has made his award,
and says you may take so much water, the Lieutenant-Governor in Council may amend that
and say I won't give vou so much water. He goes into the whole question and examines the
whole thing with reference to the record made, and there must be a record made to give rise
to the exercise of this power.
I t never was intended by this Act that the LieutenantGovernor in Council should have the powers of a Court of first instance as it were.
Mr. McPhillips: The only objection Mr. Wilson has is this, the Government, the Lieutenant-Governor in Council, may specify the conditions in the Order in Council, but I say you
cannot make the Order in Council without the evidence; the Act contemplates that you have
the evidence before you in order to enable you to make the Order in Council.
Mr. Eberts: What about the powers conferred by sub-section (4) of 136?
Mr. Wilson: Section 136 is one thing and section 85 is another. Section 136 is intended
to do this: Whenever the Lieutenant-Governor in Council thinks it is expedient to reserve
water, he has to do two things in order to make the reserve an accurate and proper one. First,
it must be signed by the Chief Commissioner, and then it must be published in the British
Columbia Gazette, and it must state what it is intended to reserve it for. I submit with the
most profound respect that you have not jurisdiction to sit here and inquire into these matters
at this stage.
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Mr. McPhillips: Haven't we made an application under the Statute, and aren't we here
to back that up with our evidence?
Mr. Wilson: You should be before the Commissioner.
Mr. Eberts: I think I will hear the evidence. I note your objection and if after consideration I come to the conclusion that we have no power, I will so advise the Government. But
with a view to getting all the information we can with reference to the different applicants,
we purpose hearing the evidence to-day, and hope that you will try to give us all the evidence
you can with reference to this application for Coquitlam water.
E. B. HERMON. Examined by Mr. McPhillips.
Q.—You made an examination of Coquitlam Lake as an engineer? A.—I did.
Q.—When did you first make your examination? A.—In the spring of 1898.
Q.—I believe you then measured the water? A.—I did.
Q.—You might explain how you found it? A.—On July 28th, 1898, I measured Coquitlam River and found 22,042 inches of water in the stream; on August 22nd of the same year,
I found 15,214 inches of water, and on September 19th I found 14,500 ; that was the lowest
water in the year 1898.
Q.—What further examination did you make, Mr. Hermon, and when ? A.—I surveyed
a pipe line from the lake to Port Moody for the purpose of developing water-power from
Coquitlam Lake, during July and August. The original line from Coquitlam Lake shows, at
the proposed tunnel site, an altitude of 424 feet. We propose to run the water through from
Trout Lake, which has an altitude of 400 feet, and then to build a dam at the outlet of Trout
Lake and carry the water by means of steel pipe to the shores of Burrard Inlet, where the
power-house will be situated, and the dotted line on that plan there shows the proposed pole
line for power to Vancouver and New Westminster. I t is proposed also to put a dam at the
outlet of Coquitlam.
Mr. Prentice: Q.—How many inches of water are to be stored in those two dams ?
A.— The total capacity of the lake is 20,000 horse-power fully developed.
Q.—How many inches ? A.—Approximately 20,000.
Q.—So that in addition to the 15,000 inches, you add 20,000 by means of your dam ?
A.—Fifteen at low water, and we add 5,000 by accumulation. There have been lower
measurements of the river taken than what I have found.
Mr. McPhillips: Q.—How much are we asking for? A.—5,000.
Mr. Prentice: Q.—So that you really store all the water that you use by means of your
dams ? A.—All that we use under our application.
There is naturally running to waste
down the stream the total quantity of water that we are applying for.
Q.—What effect would the building of that dam and the taking of that water have on
the Westminster water works ? A.—We propose to extend the outlet of the Westminster pipe
line up to and within the dam from 500 feet below, where we take our water.
Q.—So that the City of New Westminster must always get water before you get any ?
A.—In fact there is an agreement which states that our inlet must be at least 6 inches below
our intake, that is, they would have 6 inches to draw from after we were out of business
altogether.
I t improves the Westminster water works, because at present they have only
30 feet head, and we will give them 10 feet more. I t increases the capacity of their waterpipe considerably.
Mr. McPhillips : Q.—I understand you to say that what you propose to do would be an
advantage to the City of New Westminster? A.—Decidedly. I t is unnecessary, as far as
the power company are concerned, to build a dam, the water is sufficient and running to waste
in the stream.
Q.—How much does Westminster use ? A.—I don't know, but the capacity is 50 inches.
Q.—And how much water would be left? A.—According to my measurements there
would be seven or eight thousand left, but I know there have been lower measurements. But
there are three or four thousand inches running to waste.
Q.—How much water would be required to satisfy the present needs of the City of New
Westminster and the Municipalities? A.—Well, 50 inches seem to give New Westminster a
fairly good service, that is, as far as the quantity of water is concerned; that is, an inch of
water will supply one hundred persons, and it is a matter of figuring it out for the Municipalities on the same basis.
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Q.—How many people would 3,000 inches supply ? A.—Three millions. I n Vancouver
we use more water than that, because it is used for municipal purposes much more freely than
in New Westminster, but you can take a safe estimate that one inch of water will serve fifty
persons and employ water for all purposes; that would be double the present Westminster
supply.
Q.—What is the feasibility of this scheme, and what is the water to be used for ? A.—
The idea is to develop power to operate electric works in Vancouver and Westminster, the
works of the British Columbia Electric Company.
Q.—Would the number of inches that you would catch from Trout Lake be in excess of
5,000 inches sometimes ? A.—Yes ; on account of the storage. The supply from Coquitlam
Lake would have to be governed so as to keep Trout Lake full.
Q.—How long would it take to build or construct this scheme? A.—Between two and
three years, including the tunnel; the tunnel alone would take at least two years. I t is proposed to work from either end; it is simply a case of mining through rock. At the Trout
Lake end we propose to put a dam in first so as to have the lake full of water at the earliest
possible moment, and then the pipe from that to the power-house, and then the pole line.
Q.—Leaving a good margin, what would be the estimated time for doing that portion of
the work? A.—As 1 understand it, they require additional power next winter in Vancouver,
so that it would be done this winter; the- dam could go in this year so as to get this winter's
rainfall in Trout Lake. We can get sufficient additional power to carry an electric plant in
Vancouver until that tunnel is built, from Trout Lake. Trout Lake will give 2,200 horsepower for twenty days, and that in addition to the present steam-plant will carry the company
over. That is the idea in making the application now ; it gives us an opportunity of doing
that work now—this year.
Q.—What is the other extreme, now; the quickest time you could possibly build it ?
A.—Twelve months after we start operations. You can't tell the time exactly ; the time it
will take to get the machinery will regulate it largely.
Q.—What is the estimated expenditure on the first portion of these works? A.—I
haven't taken it up in that line, Mr. McBhillips, but, approximately, the power-house, etc.,
would be about $400,000.
Q.—What would be the possible expenditure of that amount in the first twelve months?
A.—I should say there would be $200,000 of that, approximately, spent, probably one-third
of the amount.
Q.—Who would be the consumers? A.—The British Columbia Street Bailway Company;
Westminster City, if they became consumers, would become large consumers; Vancouver
City, also.
Q.—I believe Westminster has a power plant of its own ? A.—Yes; a steam plant at
the present time.
Q.—When you say Westminster would be a consumer, you anticipate some agreement
between Westminster and this Company ? A.—Yes; I was present when the agreement was
discussed.
Mr. Wilson: You propose to put a dam at the foot of Coquitlam Lake, thus raising the
water what distance ? A.—At least five feet.
Q.—And the bottom of your tunnel would be in relation to that five feet, where ? A.—
We have placed the floor of the intake of our tunnel six inches above the intake of Westminster's pipe.
Q.—And the intake of Westminster's pipe is where ? A.—It will be seven or eight feet
below the top of the dam.
Q.—Then you put a dam at the foot of Trout Lake, and take the water down to your
power-house, situate as I see here on the north arm of Burrard Inlet, and discharge the water
into the Inlet? A.—Into the creek at the Inlet.
Q.—How far above the mouth of the creek ? A.—Right at the mouth.
Q.—Which application are you proceeding on? Mr. McPhillips : The one dated August
29th.
Mr. Wilson : And is the one of the 22nd of August abandoned ?
Mr. McPhillips : I don't know about t h a t ; we are proceeding on the one of the 29th.
Mr. Wilson to witness : Have you applied any formal test to ascertain the conditions that
prevail on the Coquitlam River ?
A.—With respect to what ?

1264

A P P L I C A T I O N S FOR W A T E R R E C O R D S .

1902

Q.—With respect to the flow of water? A.—Yes; I measured it during three months
of 1898.
Q.—1898 only? A.—Yes; it is fed by a large glacier and a very wet district.
Q.—The glacier would not give much water in winter time ? A.—The best answer to
that is that the Westminster pipe line at the intake had less water this summer over it than
any time since it was put in ; some five inches of water over their pipe line.
Q.—Do you know the amount of water that was in there this summer? A.—About five
inches over their pipe line, but then there was a river 100 feet wide flowing at the end of i t ;
the pipe line simply projects into the stream ; the Westminster people keep a record of the
water over their pipe line; September is probably the lowest month in the year.
Mr. Pooley : How is it you propose erecting your dam at the mouth at least five feet—
why not ten ? A.—It would depend on the amount of power wre develop ; for five thousand
inches of water we don't require any dam, but we have agreed with Westminster City to build
a dam at least five feet.
Q.—After you have built that, what would be the area of the lake ; does it raise it five
feet? A.—The area of the lake is 2,500 acres—you mean what would be the flooded area?
Q.—Yes. A.—That is a question you could not answer; it would be a matter of raising
the water area around the level.
Q.—Before you make your calculations, surely you run your levels around the lake ?
A.—I know the area of the lake; it has a mountainous shore line.
Q.—If you haven't taken a survey of your shore line, how can you calculate ? A.—We
know the area of the lake, and any additional flow we count that.
Q.—The raising of the dam to this height would give you 5,000 additional horse-power ?
A.—Approximately ; it is only during the dry season that we require this additional supply ;
during nine months the water is ample, but during those three months we require this storage;
I was very much opposed to i t ; we didn't require the dam at a l l ; it is an additional expense
and has to be maintained, but we were forced to it by the City of Westminster, and we agreed
to put in the dam and connect their pipe line with it.
An adjournment was then taken for lunch.
A. M. HAWKES, C E .

Examined by Mr.McPhillips.

Q.—I believe you have had considerable experience in water-power matters ? A.—I
served an apprenticeship with J. H. Shed, of Providence, R.I., of three and a half years, and
since then I have been practising engineering, chiefly hydraulics, for fifteen years, and made a
special study of water-power for ten years, largely with water-works—almost entirely.
Q.—You have had a good deal of experience with the waters to which we refer now?
A.—For about ten years, off and on.
Q.—When did you first have anything to do with this water? A.—The first I had to do
with the Coquitlam water as a source of water-power was in the spring of 1892. A t that time
the Coquitlam Water Company, of which Mr. Major and the two Mr. Hills were the trustees
or directors, was in full power, and with them I went to the Coquitlam River, and looked into
the river and the whole proposition as relates to a power proposition. Since then I have been
to the river at least once in every year; of late I have been more frequently. I have made
for the City of New Westminster two detailed reports in connection with their taking the
water from Coquitlam Lake and River. So that, from the year 1896 to the present time, I
may say I am very familiar with the stream.
Q.—From that experience, can you say what quantity of water is there there at both
stages? A.—The lowest water which has ever been observed is, I think, this summer; it was
also the lowest with similar streams which I have been constantly gauging in the State of
Washington, and there was one day this year when the flow for, I think, the full 24 hours,
was below 240 cubic feet a second. There was a week, including that day, when it was 250
cubic feet per second or less. The flood stage of the river, from odd marks I could find along
the bank, will read as high as ten thousand cubic feet per second. I t multiplies itself by
forty. I have kept gauges for a power company in my own country where the river is similar,
that is, a river fed by a glacier in the summer time and rainfall in the winter season, consecutively since 1895, and this year October was the lowest point; we have found that river
lower than any of the settlers along it can remember, for one day it was below 240 cubic feet;
I think the lowest point of that day it must have gone below 230 cubic feet.
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Q.—Would you explain what the City of New Westminster has done, and after that
explain what the effect of what it is intended to do, would have on the City of New Westminster's water supply? A.—The City of New Westminster has a water supply taken from
this Coquitlam River at a point about five hundred feet down stream from the first riffle in the
river, where it gets over the rim of the lake; this inlet is the one in common use, and is
connected with the inlet house where they have a dam; directly opposite the inlet house they
have a second inlet, a little lower in the bed of the stream, calculated to draw water from the
stream in case of lower water. From there a fourteen-inch pipe line runs about twelve miles,
at an elevation of 1,200 feet above tide, giving a descending grade of about thirty, feet. On
the fire investigation 31.03 was the minimum head of water on that pipe line; the lowest
water this year may have reduced that by one foot. From that New Westminster draws
about one cubic foot per second, and that is sufficient to supply about 100 gallons per capita
to about 6,500 persons. The average of all the water-works in the United States is 100
gallons; there are a few cities which use 120 gallons, and one city 150 gallons. There are
metre cities, however, where water metres have been introduced, which get as low as thirtyfive or forty gallons, but the average of all metre cities is about fifty gallons per capita per day.
The effect of diverting five thousand inches of water from the Coquitlam River, as far as the
New Westminster water supply is concerned, would be practically nothing. If the water
were diverted without a dam at the outlet of Coquitlam Lake, it might be possible, in the
driest season, if the company attempted to draw five thousand miner's inches, the upper inlet
would be exposed, but when the company was drawing its five thousand miner's inches, there
would still remain down the river about 100 cubic feet per second, and, therefore, if the company attempted to draw 5,000 miner's inches without any dam being provided, the water over
the upper inlet would necessarily be laid off for some time. Therefore, in making my reports
to the City of New Westminster in both cases, I advised them that in dealing with a company
they should ask that provision be made to maintain the water over their inlet, and to stand for
the right that it be maintained at the same level to which they had been accustomed. If that
were done their water-works would not be impaired at all; and, further, in any dealing with
a company, fhey should get the company to build a dam at the outlet of the lake and extend
the intake above that dam. I understand an agreement has been entered into whereby a fivefoot dam will be constructed at this point, and the extension of the intake pipe into the lake
will, of itself, make a greater head of water by about two feet, and the probable flow over that
dam of three or even two feet will still further raise that head. The result, therefore, will be
that when the water is at the lip of the dam they will have an increase of seven or eight feet
head, and that, will mean 75,000 gallons in the pipe, or a matter of ten per cent, increase,
because, as the dam increased in height their supply pressure would increase correspondingly.
They would derive a benefit of about ten per cent, in the amount of water they could sell from
their water-works system just as it stands now. As a matter of fact, the dry season usually
comes late in the fall when the glacier is frozen, and the effects of the first rainfalls are not
turned into the stream, and in July and August when the lowest water is in the river; and in
July and August, when the lowest water is in it, the river has never gone down to its low
water level, so that they will always have a little more benefit than ten per cent.
Q.— -How'does it increase? If the dam is raised ten feet does it increase twenty per
cent? A.—Not as rapidly as that. As you increase the velocity of the water you increase the
eddies in the rivet places in the pipe, and so you increa.se the friction until you get to the places
where you can increase the velocity without interfering with the water inside the pipe.
Q.—How about the water for the other Municipalities ; what amount of water would be
left to each, giving a reasonable amount to New Westminster? A. — After Westminster
had taken her present quota, one cubic foot in the driest season, ninety-nine other New
Westminsters could come in and take theirs, and that without having any draining effect on
the lake. The effect of building this dam would be to store a certain quantity of water there
which could be drawn from. Assuming the area of the lake, from the Government surveys, to
be about 2,500 acres, a five-foot dam there would store more than enough water for another
hundred Municipalities like New Westminster; in fact, you could supply two hundred New
Westminsters with the water out of the lake.
Q.—That could be further increased by putting in metres ? A.—Yes, it could.
Q.—What about the feasibility of carrying the water to these lower Municipalities, and
the cost ? A.—Roughly speaking, assuming the cost to run along similar lines to the cost of
New Westminster supply, which would be a fair average idea of it, the cost of supplying Delta
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from the Coquitlam, I think might safely be taken at four times the cost of supplying New
Westminster ; that was about half a million dollars.
For Delta you would require a much
larger distribution system.
I should think that Richmond Municipality might be taken at
one and a half to two times the cost of the New Westminster supply.
Delta introduces
elements which, to my mind, make it absolutely unfeasible.
You have the Fraser River to
cross, and any one who has dealt with the troubles of Vancouver in maintaining water-works
system across the narrow inlet, can imagine what a river 3,000 feet wide, and with a pressure
in flood like the Fraser River, something like twelve miles an hour, would be like.
As an
engineer, I would much rather deal with Burrard Inlet than with the Fraser Biver. When I
speak about three thousand feet across, you must remember there is the lowland to deal with,
and this is a very serious engineering proposition to attack.
Even if you took advantage of
the bridge when it is built, that bridge must have a draw, and you will have to carry your
pipe across that draw.
Q.—Is there any other way of supplying the Delta?
A.—In 1893 I was called upon to
make a report for a water-works system for a company which I think was fully organised at
that time.
I reported on a system for taking water from the land on the high side, or the
east side of the river. If I remember rightly, I estimated that that would cost $125,000.
Q.—Is there sufficient water there ? A.—Ample water ; the very finest of spring water.
Q.—What about the feasibility of the Vancouver Power Company's scheme ? A.—It is
a very feasible proposition.
The first cost of it exceeds probably the cost of any similar
scheme, on account of the long tunnel through the solid rock, but such tunnels as that are in
use in larger water and irrigation works.
I t is a heavy expense driving such a tunnel, but
when it is once constructed, there is practically no expense for maintenance of that part, and
the rest of it is a very simple matter, such as is used in every power scheme on this western
slope. I t is the safest mode of construction, without question ; except that item of expense
and the time required, there is nothing that will prevent its being one of the finest water
power schemes on the Pacific Coast.
Q.—Supposing there was a very low water in the Coquitlam, for how long a period could
the Company depend upon the storage in Trout Lake?
A.—From the area of the lake as
given to me, they could draw 5,000 inches for over twenty days from Trout Lake without
drawing anything from Coquitlam Lake.
The storage at Coquitlam Lake would carry 5,000
miner's inches for any dry spell that has been recorded.
You would have to take it from the
surplus waters; you would not have to draw from the original low-water stage of the river.
Q.—In other words, no matter how dry the season would be, the taking of this number
of inches would not affect the lake 1 A.—That is true.
Q.—In other words, all the water you want to record you would store yourself ? A.—
Yes, with these two dams that the Company would construct.
Q.—What do you think about the feasibility of taking water down to Bichmond ? A.—
I t is an engineering possibility, but it is not a commercial advisability ; not a commercially
advisable proposition.
The first expense of carrying it to Bichmond would be so great that
you would have to charge very much for the water; you couldn't get any customers at the
rates fixed to make it pay.
Q.—What would be the cost ? A.—It would depend on how much pipe you w a n t ; you
might put it roughly that a similar supply to the City of Westminster would cost $700,000.
But the undertaking would be so great, and the population to be supplied would be so small,
that it would not be a commercially advisable proposition.
You would have to cross one of
the arms of the Fraser River ; then you would have to maintain a pipe line under an excessive
head, because as soon as you leave the hill at Westminster your trouble about a head pressure
commences.
Q.—I understand that as an engineer you do not consider either scheme of bringing water
to these places a feasible scheme? A.—Not commercially so.
Q.—As regards Coquitlam, that is closer? A. — Coquitlam would be fairly easy to
handle.
Q.—I believe there are only about 200 or 300 persons there, perhaps 250; it would not
take very much to supply these? A.—If they take it from down below Goldstream, or Coal
Creek, perhaps fifteen or twenty thousand dollars would supply 150 or 200 persons.
Mr. Pooley : Q.—You have stated that it would cost $700,000 to take the water down
to Richmond ? A.—Approximately.
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Q.—What distance is it, 20 miles? A.—From 14 at the upper to 20 at the lower end ;
it might average 16 miles.
Q.—What size main would you have to cost $700,000 ? A.—Well, if you supply a population of five or six thousand persons, such as New Westminster, then you want a main about
the same size—14 inches.
Q.—But to carry a 14-inch main down to Richmond wouldn't cost $700,000? A.—After
you have carried a main 14 inches in diameter 16 miles you will also have to distribute it if
you are going to sell water.
Q.—The question was the cost of carrying a main down from Coquitlam to Richmond, a
distance of 16 miles, and I want to know how you make it cost that much? A.—That never
was the question; the question was the cost of furnishing a water supply to Richmond Municipality, and I said that the cost of furnishing a similar supply to the City of New Westminster, and simply taking $500,000 as the rough cost to the City of New Westminster, the cost
would be about $700,000, because it will be five miles further to carry the water, and a greater
area to distribute it.
Q.—Of course the distribution is entirely different from carrying down the main pipe;
the distribution is regulated by the number of inhabitants ? A.—Exactly.
Q.—Then how can you say it would cost $700,000 to supply Richmond, because I know
something about water-works, and it costs us nothing like that. I was surprised at the statement at first, and then I thought it had something to do with the pressure, probably that you
had to have a great deal stronger pipe ? A.—Everything about your system would have to be
made for the maximum pressure that can be thrown on it. But what a water supply would
cost for Richmond Municipality, assuming that you are going to carry a supply for a similar
population to New Westminster, would require something like thirty or forty per cent, more
than New Westminster, which was, roughly speaking, half a million dollars.
Mr. Eberts : Q.—What is the distance from Coquitlam Lake to the furthest point in
Richmond ? A.—I should judge it would be about 20 miles; I never scaled it, but I should
judge it would be more than 20 miles to the furthest point in Richmond.
Q.—How far is it from Coquitlam Lake to Steveston ? A.—Twenty-eight miles. Then,
if it is 28 miles, it will cost more than $700,000 to furnish a water supply there.
Mr. Bobertson : Q.—What time of the year did you examine these springs that you
speak about ? A.—The first time was in March ; I think the second time was early in June
or late in May, and the third time I think about the middle of August, all of the year 1893.
Q.—Can you point out on this map where the springs are? A.—No. 243, sections 12,
11, 14, 15 and 22 ; more especially are the springs noticeable from lot 11.
Q.—What would he the height of these above the flats? A.—Varying from 10 to 30 or
40 feet above high tide.
Q.—What is the quantity of water contained in these springs? A.—About half a million
gallons per day; I can't give you the exact figures, because I am speaking from memory.
Q.—Would there be sufficient to distribute it over the Delta ? A.—(Explains at length
that it would be necessary to have a gathering place from which to distribute the water).
Q.—"What distance would it be from these springs to the furthest point in Delta ? A.—
Eleven miles away from the springs.
Q.—And what would the cost of such a system be as vou have spoken about? A.—Somewhere between $125,000 and $150,000.
Q.—That would be only suitable for supplying Delta ? A.—.Yes.
Q.—You don't know of any other supply for Richmond? A.—No.
J. BUNTZEN, General Manager, B. C. Electric Co. and Secretary Vancouver Power Company. Examined by Mr. McPhillips.
Q.—What do you know of the ability of the Vancouver Power Company, or their intention
to carry out this scheme? A.—The Chairman of our Company, Mr. H o m e Payne, was here a
few years ago and I then submitted to him this scheme with all the reports, and he fully
approved of it and expressed his intention to go on with it, subject to his being able to raise the
necessary money. He thought it would be possible to raise these funds in a year. When he
arrived in Toronto, he wired me that he had secured some fifty thousand pounds, and before
leaving New York he wired me that he had one hundred thousand pounds, something like
$700,000 available at once, and further instructed me that as soon as the records were obtained
to start on the work and proceed with it at once. I have a letter from him later on confirming
his telegrams.
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Q.—And if you can obtain this water record, what is the intention to do immediately?
A.—The intention is at once to develop the Trout Lake power as far as it goes, and use it
next winter, that is, if we are enabled to proceed with the work, to help us out in Vancouver.
If we do not get this water we shall have to obtain a considerable quantity of steam machinery,
which would not be of any particular use later on except to ourselves, practically an unnecessary expense.
Q.—How much money is it the intention to spend right away? A.—It is difficult to say
exactly how much will be spent; everything will be spent, the work will be done as soon as
possible. W e will be quite prepared to furnish any amount of security guaranteeing any
amount of money required. We would guarantee $50,000 available for the next six months,
another $200,000 within twelve months from the date we obtain the records, another $250,000
in two years, and the remaining $250,000 in three years. We estimate it will take about
three years, about two and a half to complete the construction of the whole plan. In fact, the
money is available now, only it would not be taken up until required.
Q.—What is the power used now by the B. C. Electric Company? A.—For New Westminster and Vancouver only is close on 3,000.
Q.—And the requirements for power increase very rapidly? A.—Yes.
Q.—Can you give any estimate? A.—We intend building several new lines in Vancouver.
W e also intend, if Westminster will accept our proposition, to furnish "Westminster with
power. That is not decided, but possibly it will be. We have extended our lighting system,
and I might say there will be an increase of six or seven hundred horse-power per year. That
is without considering the possibility of a contract with Westminster, or any large enterprise
that may require power from us.
Q.—You found in the past that requirements for power increased more than you anticipated? A.—Yes, we have always been short of power, and although we always attempt to be
very far ahead, it takes a long time to get machinery. Our intention now was to put in so
much power at once that we would not require to put in any for one or two years, so that we
would be fully up to the mark and take no chances of running short.
Q.—Generally, who are the consumers who require electric power in Vancouver and New
Westminster? A.—We have the district railway in Vancouver, for which we have a contract
for twenty years, and we have the street lighting contract, another six years, and the whole
incandescent lighting system to every corner of the city, and we expect in the future to reap
a benefit from the present outlay. In New Westminster we have the city street car service
to which we at the present time intend to add one or more cars ; we further have the interurban line between Vancouver and Westminster, which requires more power continually as
the population increases between the cities. There are a number of settlers living out there
and we try to induce settlement by cheap rates, and to some extent as the result of our
endeavours the land has been well settled, and we have almost doubled the size of the cars
running on that line. Then we furnish power to various industries in Vancouver at very
cheap rates in small quantities. We are not in a position to furnish power in large quantities
as we would like. That can only be done if you have cheap horse-power, and that is our
object in endeavouring to get this water-power, to furnish power cheap and in any quantity.
There are some industries that have applied for power, and we have been forced to refuse them
at the present time.
Mr. Prentice: Do you know of any industry requiring this power except yourselves?
A.—Only through ourselves. The Lulu Island Bailway, they may take electric power; it is
an open question. They are building the line so that they may take steam or electric power.
Q.—They are not applying for this record? A.—No.
Mr. Eberts: What is the amount of invested capital in your company? A.—About a
million and a half.
Q.—You desire this power particularly for running your own cars? A.—Yes, chiefly for
our own power, and getting a sufficient supply to sell power to other people. Any large
industries that come along we should like to be able to give them a rate at which they could
afford to do business.
Mr. Eberts : Do I understand that to mean that you pay actually for the construction of
the pipe from where it is now and place it in the dam, free of cost to New Westminster ?
A.—Yes ; I might say that we have had considerable negotiations in this matter, and
while we are advised by our engineer that it is unnecessary, and while it would cost something
like $25,000 or $30,000, which at the present time is unnecessary, still, as we do business with
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Westminster in many ways, we want to be as friendly as possible ; we don't want any hard
feeling against us from New Westminster; we would rather pay that money out and have
Westminster with us in that matter than against us.
Mr. Wilson : The British Columbia Electric Company and the Vancouver Power Company are the same shareholders? A.—It is necessary to form a special company for a power
company, and the British Columbia Electric Company formed the Vancouver Power Company
some four years ago.
Q.—You say you have been supplying power to various industries in New Westminster
and Vancouver? A.—Not in New Westminster—well, we did one, only one.
Q.—Isn't it a fact that you are so short of power that you can't supply power to Vancouver ? A.—That is why we are trying to get more power.
Q. — I understood you it was for the purpose of reducing rates? A.—Yes, we are trying
to do t h a t ; if you will look over our scale for the past few years you will find it has been a
constant reduction.
Q.—Then you must anticipate a very large increase of business ; you see what you are
proposing to d o ; you propose to pay interest or dividends to your shareholders on $750,000,
and yet you propose to reduce rates ? A.—We contemplate saving the price of steam plant.
Q.—What is the price of coal ? A.—We pay for coal $2.30, and from the 1st of January
$2.50 ; of course the main object is to save the expense of steam plant.
Q.—What does that cost you a year? A.—I don't know that that is a question I should
be called upon to answer.
Q,—Do I understand you to say that this $750,000 was raised this year or four years ago?
A.—This year ; within the last few weeks.
Q.—In other words, since the dispute began ? A.—There has been no dispute that I
know of.
Q.—Since there have been rival applications for the water? A.—I think I gave you the
date that Mr. Horne-Payne was here, and when he left for the East and raised this money.
Q.—When did he leave for the East ? A.—The beginning of October ; if you like I can
show you his telegram.
Mr. Wilson : No, thank you, Mr. Buntzen ; I'll take your word for it.
Mr. Wilson enters an objection against one of the terms insisted upon by Mr. Brown on
behalf of New Westminster, namely, that no record should be given to any one of this water
if such water were to be conveyed in a flume or pipe on the same side of the Coquitlam river
as the flume of the New Westminster Water Works.
After some further discussion on the point of jurisdiction raised by Mr. Wilson, the
deputation withdrew.
APPLICATIONS FOR W A T E R RIGHTS BEFORE D.

BOBSON, ESQ., GOVERNMENT AGENT.

N E W WESTMINSTER, B. C ,

2nd Nov.,

1901.

G. O. M. Dockrill, Esq., of Messrs. Morrison & Dockrill, represented the City of New
Westminster; E. V, Bodwell, Esq., K. O , and A. E. McPhillips, K. C , the Vancouver Power
Co.; L. G. McPhillips, K. C , the British Columbia Electric Bailway ; Sir Charles Hibbert
Tupper, K O, appeared on behalf of the Stave Lake Power Co.; F. W. Howay, Esq., of
Messrs. Howay & Beid, for the Municipalities of Delta and Bichmond.
Commissioner Bobson: I presume the matter to come up first this morning is the application of the City of New Westminster for water ?
Mr. Dockrill : I believe, under the Statute, the application of the City should be taken up
first.
With respect to the application of the City, the Vancouver Bower Company have made
certain proposals to the City of New Westminster, and will come up for execution in the form
of an agreement at a regular meeting of the City Council, and a by-law passed. Meanwhile, I
am making formal application for the record asked for by the City of New Westminster, and
rely upon section 44.
On behalf of the City I state that the application of the City is made
bona fide for the purposes of such Municipality alone. I file affidavit of William Henderson
as to the posting of the notice.
Commissioner Bobson : I presume that it will be necessary to show, first, that you are in
a position to ask for a record, Mr. Dockrill, as an incorporated Municipality ?
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Mr. Dockrill: I don't know that it is necessary to show New Westminster is incorporated, because the charter is contained in the Bevised Statutes.
Commissioner Bobson : There should be something in it to show that you are entitled to
ask for a record.
I have nothing to show that you are.
I do not know whether you are
incorporated or not.
Mr. Dockrill : If you want the production of the charter to show that we are incorporated—
Commissioner Robson : If you would quote the section of the Act.
Mr. Dockrill : I am asking under Part I I I . of the " Water Clauses Consolidation Act."
Commissioner Robson : First, it must be shown that you are entitled as a Municipality to
apply.
Mr. Dockrill : You simply want proof that the City of New Westminster is a Municipality ? A.—Yes.
Mr. Dockrill: I apply under section 40 of the " Water Clauses Consolidation Act." The
" N e w Westminster Act, 1888"; that is the official name of the Act of incorporation.
Commissioner Robson : That is all I ask for, so that we will have it down in the proceedings.
Copy of the notice posted in the office of the Commissioner produced and put in, stamped
September 21st, 1901.
Commissioner Robson : Is there anything further to say about this application ?
Mr. L. G. McPhillips : We have no objection to that, but I would draw your attention
to the notice which appears in the Gazette, page 1799, which reserves this water; I suppose
you are aware of it ?
Commissioner Robson : Yes. I suppose you have seen that, Mr. Dockrill ?
Mr. Dockrill: Yes. Any record as granted heretofore will have to be granted subject to
that reservation.
Mr. L. G. McPhillips : Page 1799 of the Gazette of 31st October, 1901, No. 44—that is
the one you have.
Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper : On behalf of the Stave Lake Power Co. I have no objection
to make to the application of the City.
Commissioner Robson : With regard to the quantity of the water, Mr. Dockrill, in the
case of the Municipality applying, under section 13, there is required " the proof or evidence
of the volume of unrecorded water available."
Mr. Dockrill : I am not offering any evidence as to that.
Any records issued will have
to be issued subject to the water being there.
Commissioner Robson quoted section again.
Mr. Dockrill: That does not apply.
Commissioner Robson : No evidence is offered on that point.
Mr. Dockrill : I am not offering any evidence.
Commissioner Robson : Don't you think it necessary ?
Mr. Dockrill : I have not considered it necessary.
Commissioner Robson : Can you show me anything by which the City is exempted from
applying that part of section 13 ; I require it of any individual applying, and I don't know of
anything that exempts the City from furnishing that evidence ? A.—As I said before, if the
water is there we are entitled to a record, and it does not make any difference whether you
have evidence of five, ten or fifteen thousand inches, or no water at all—we are simply taking
a record at our own risk.
Commissioner Robson : If it were an incorporated company I could not grant the record
unless that evidence was before me, under that section, and I don't know of anything to
exempt me—
Mr. L. G. McPhillips : We will be giving that evidence, and that may be used by Mr.
Dockrill for the purpose.
Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper : I want to object.
I n connection with^ the application of
the Vancouver Company we shall take strong objections, and that objection would be prejudicial
if any arrangement or consent of the Stave Lake Power Company was made of that character.
The case before you now is that of New Westminster, and must be tried separately and cannot
lean on evidence given in some other case and in proceedings that have nothing to do with it.
Each case is separate and must be decided on its own facts.
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Mr. L. G. McPhillips: If Mr. Dockrill thinks it necessary, after all that has been said, we
will offer our witness, and the evidence can be put in with his case—whether put in first or last
it makes no difference, it seems to me.
Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper: Isn't there a shorter cut? All parties admit there is the
water they? require.
Mr. L. G. McPhillips : I did not understand you were not prepared to admit.
Mr. Bodwell: If we make any admission we will admit the exact number of inches which
we can prove. The admission will be there are so many inches of water available in Coquitlam
Lake. The only proof your Honour requires is the amount of water available for diversion.
The proper way to prove that is to prove the number of inches in Coquitlam Lake which can be
diverted for water-power purposes. That is the proper way to prove under that section. We
are ready to admit, so far as we are concerned, there are so many inches of water in Coquitlam
Lake which, with ordinary appliances, are available for water-power purposes, which may be
diverted from the lake. If your Honour requires, and Mr. Dockrill wants to use that for his
purpose, it may be used.
Commissioner Bobson: The Act says that proof satisfactory to the Commissioner shall be
produced as to the volume of unrecorded water available for diversion, that is the point I want.
Mr. L. G. McPhillips: I do not think it makes much difference who proves it. All Mr.
Dockrill has to do is to adjourn that portion of his case until our evidence is in.
Commissioner Bobson: If Mr. Dockrill likes to call anyone in the room, if he is competent to give evidence, on that point, I am ready to accept it, but I think, subject to Mr.
Dockrill's correction, I think that is necessary under the Act.
Mr. Dockrill: I thought I had the evidence here taken in the previous application before
you as to the amount of water, and I think you will find it in the records of the office. Mr.
Hermon appeared before you on an application and gave evidence. I do not remember the
exact amount, but it was something in excess of 10,000 inches.
Commissioner Bobson: I do not know whether I have that, and I could not tell without a
search. I do not hardly think that can be taken as evidence.
Mr. Dockrill: I t depends upon the Commissioner as to the sufficiency of the evidence. I
would ask you to adjourn that part of it, and I can get the evidence in a short time.
Mr. L. G. McPhillips: I do not think he should ask for another adjournment; he has
had two. Now, my friend said he was going to come here to-day prepared with his evidence.
The first thing we hear is a motion for an adjournment. The evidence you require is merely
formal evidence, which we do not intend to dispute. We will give the same evidence, and my
learned friend knows that the same witness he used on the former occasion is here in the room
and will give the same evidence as before. Why should he want an adjournment? This is a
short day, and it was understood we. should stop at 12 o'clock, and I do not think there should
be another adjournment. We have been put to a great deal of expense; two counsel are here
from Victoria. We are here with our evidence, and I do not think we should be asked to stand
any additional expenses.
Commissioner Robson (to Mr. Dockrill): Have you any evidence as to the quantity of
water? Mr. Dockrill: No.
E. B. HERMON sworn. Examined by Mr. Dockrill.
Q.—You are an hydraulic engineer? A.—And civil engineer.
Q.—You have also paid attention to hydraulic engineering? A.—Exactly.
Q. — You have lately made an examination of the water flowing from Coquitlam Lake into
the Coquitlam Biver? A,—Yes.
Q.—What do you estimate the volume of water there at the lowest season of the year?
A.—I measured the volume of water flowing into Coquitlam Biver on September 22nd,
1898, being the lowest water in that year, and I found 15,000 inches flowing in the stream.
Q.—Have you made an examination at any other time? A.—Not to measure the stream.
I measured it before that at different months throughout the year.
Q.—And that was the lowest ? A.—That was the lowest water.
Cross-examination by Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper.
Q.—How often have you been in the vicinity of that river?
month at one period.
Q._When? A—1898.

A.—I worked there for a
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Q. — How far from the water did you work? A.—I surveyed a ditch line; we were proposing at that time to take the water out by a ditch alongside the river.
Q.—With the exception of that year, 1898, have you any knowledge of the water there,
or the volume of water, or the difficulties existing? A.—I visited it once each month to measure the highest water there that season.
Q.—Once each month in 1898? A.—Yes.
Q.—What months ? A.—The first time I was there in February, beginning about February and through to October.
Q.—In 1898? A — 1 8 9 8 .
Q.—What did you find on each of these occasions? A.—From memory I could not tell
you.
Q.—Did you take notes ? A.—Oh, yes.
Q.—You speak of 15,000 inches from notes ? A. —Not this morning.
Q.—Where are those notes ? A.—In Vancouver. I thought I had them with me.
Q.—You have not got them with you ? A.—No.
Q.—You are speaking without the book. A.—Yes.
Q.—And that book contains the notes in regard to the other examinations ? A.—Yes,
I thought I had it with me.
I will take objection that this evidence cannot be put in. The best evidence is that book,
and this evidence ought to have no weight.
Q.—Now, you are aware that that river has been dry 14 years, very dry? A.—No.
Q.—You will not deny that ?
Q.—Of course, you will not deny it? A.—No.
Q.—You were not there 14 years ago on the river? A.—I was here.
Q.—Were you upon the river then? A.—No.
Q.—You would have been surprised to know that it ever had been dry ? A.—Very
much so.
Q.—What was the month of September, 1898, like? Have you any record as to the
weather, whether it had been raining or not that season? A.—No.
Q.—Did you make any calculations in your book or any of the notes in regard to the
season as to whether it was an exceptionally wet or exceptionally dry season? A.—No.
Q.—You have made no examinations since? A.—Not to measure the water.
Q.—Who was with you when you measured the water in 1898? A.—Labouring men, 6
or 7 men working.
Q.—For what purpose did you measure it? A.—To determine the lowest quantity of
water flowing in the river.
Q.—At whose instance? A.—The Vancouver Power Company's.
Q.—And you made a report? A.—I did.
Q.—When did you see that last? A.—Within a few days; I think I have a copy of the
report here showing the water. It shows 15,000 inches at low water.
Q.—Taken from this memorandum book? A.—Yes.
Mr. Bodwell: 1 understood you to say that in 1898 the Vancouver Power Company had
taken steps towards the diversion of this water? A.—Yes.
.Q.—By surveys on the ground? A.—Exactly; I made the survey for the Vancouver
Power Company.
Q.—That was your business there? A.—Yes.
Q.—Did they go to any considerable expense in that direction so far as you were concerned? A.—Yes.
Q.—How long were you working on it? A.—At one period a month or six weeks, and then
in the spring time when application was made for the water-power about a week or ten days.
Q.—Then an application was really made? A.—Yes.
Q.—And the notice posted? A.—Yes.
Q.—And practically for the same purpose that the water is now being applieed for?
A—Yes.
Q.—The application was for the very same purpose as the present one? A.—Yes.
Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper: Have you those notices that were given on a previous
occasion? When did you see that last? A.—About a week ago, the original application. I
have a copy.
Q.—Did you compare that with the present? A.—It is a different application entirely.
Q.—There would hardly be a line the same as in the present? A.—That I do not know.
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Q.—You know as well as I do; would you just state the difference between the two
applications? A.—The first application was to convey the water by means of a ditch and
flume and to be used in the vicinity of Port Moody. The present application is to take the
water by means of a tunnel from Coquitlam Lake to Trout Lake or Lake Beautiful.
Q.—And thence to the North Arm of Burrard Inlet. Why did not you get a record, can
you tell us? A.—At that time?
Q.—Yes. A.—They were willing at that time to grant the record, I fancy. I t was
because it was too expensive.
Q.—It was dropped by the Company ? A.—I cannot say that.
Q.—Was it abandoned? A.—I don't know whether the application—
Q.—You don't know why it was not abandoned? A.—No.
Q.—You did not know it was abandoned? A.—No.
Commissioner Bobson: The application on behalf of this city in this case is for 10,000
inches. As an engineer, and with the knowledge y?ou have had from inspection of the river, do
you believe, are you satisfied, that there are 10,000 inches of water there? A.—Available?
Q.—Available? A.—I do.
Witness stands aside.
Commissioner Bobson to Mr. Dockrill: You apply to have that record? A.—I do.
Commissioner Bobson: I n view of the fact that there are other applications, that notices
have been posted by three Municipalities under the same clauses under which the city applies,
it seems to me that I would have to take notice of these applications as "pending applications."
Mr. Howay: I might inform you that I am appearing on behalf of the Municipalities of
Delta and Bichmond, and on their behalf we have posted notices under the section of the Act
asking that records be made on their behalf. These applications come up for hearing before
you on the 18th or 19th of this month; I think the thirty days is up about that date; the
applications show in paragraph " c " that the water which these Municipalities are applying
for is intended for the supplying of a proposed water-works system, and which shows that
intent to divert the water near the point where the present pipe line of the city is situate, and
the purpose for which the water is required for the use of the inhabitants and for the carrying
on of an efficient water-works system. As those applications are posted and as they come up
on the 19th of the month, I submit to you that under section 42 of the Act we are entitled to
precedence and entitled to be heard on that date. I t seems to me everything else must stay
under that section.
Commissioner Bobson: Of course everything else must stay outside of applications made
by Municipalities, but the question is whether I can grant or do anything with the application
of the city without the city proving to me that it requires a certain amount of water, then
other Municipalities would have the opportunity to take up the balance of the water. That is
the position it seems to be in, because the Commissioner in giving any decision at all on an
application must take into consideration pending applications. Now there are three other
applications by Municipalities. I think, therefore, that the applications of Coquitlam, Delta
and Richmond are "pending applications." With reference to the city's application it will be
necessary for the city to show that it does actually require a certain amount of water, otherwise if it takes the whole thing these other Municipalities would be left out in the cold.
Mr. Dockrill: I take it that under the Act it is not competent for the Water Commissioner to adjudicate upon this claim at the present time, that the evidence must be taken and
submitted to the Lieutenant-Governor in Council, and that it can be relied upon the LieutenantGovernor in Council will not take any steps which will be injurious to the other Municipalities
without first giving them an opportunity to be heard, and all Municipalities will be served
alike, and therefore it is not necessary to prove any specific amount required any more than it
is necessary for those Municipalities having a system of water-works to prove how much they
will require. I t is for the purpose of serving, not only for the present but for future use, that
this power is given to Municipalities. Section 42, sub-section (b).
Commissioner Robson: Only Mr. Dockrill, it says that the Commissioner shall "before
making or refusing a record, transmit to the Lieutenant-Governor in Council the notice of
application, a transcript of the application, and all evidence received by him for or against the
same, and his adjudication thereon and his reasons therefor." Now, I cannot adjudicate on a
thing if I have no evidence, and I cannot give reasons for my adjudication.
Mr. Dockrill: There is nothing before you that will prevent adjudication in respect of the
application at the present time.
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Commissioner Robson: Section 13 says: "Having regard to existing rights and records,
whether held by land owners or mine owners and to pending applications." Now, these other
Municipalities have pending applications undoubtedly.
Mr. Dockrill: Under the circumstances, I do not see that you can do anything differently.
The evidence before you is that there are 15,000 inches and the city is applying for 10,000,
and the other Municipalities 4,000 each. There are 19,000 being applied for, and we certainly
have the first application.
Commissioner Robson: I do not think so. The Commissioner shall grant a record for
such quantities as may be required by the applicant. He (the Commissioner) has power to
reduce the amount of the applicant. I hold that there are three applicants for water, and the
first applicant asks for all the water. That applicant must prove he requires it, otherwise I
would not give him so much.
Mr. Dockrill: Under section 44, we being the first Municipality to apply, I take it we
have precedence.
Commissioner Robson: Don't you think that that is intended to be read in connection
with section 13?
Mr. Dockrill: Undoubtedly all these sections are to read together.
Commissioner Robson : No, because there are pending applications.
Mr. Dockrill: That is the very reason why we are not restricted to show we actually need
that. I t is for the purpose of providing for future use.
Commissioner Robson : Supposing there are ten thousand inches—we will say fifteen
thousand inches in this case—and supposing you ask for fifteen thousand, and as a matter of
fact there is no probability of you using ever more than five hundred inches—
Mr. Dockrill: I object to the presumption as to the probability.
Commissioner Robson: But then you get fifteen thousand, and all these other Municipalities are left out forever.
Mr. Dockrill: They get an interim record.
Commissioner Robson : I don't think there is any provision for interim records for Municipalities under Part I I I .
Mr. Dockrill: The preceding portions of this Act are incorporated in Part I I I . That is
shown by the necessity for the Municipality to comply with the provisions of section 9.
Commissioner Robson : I t does seem to me it is not intended that the first Municipality,
by virtue of its first application, is to exclude every other Municipality. I t would exclude
power companies, I grant you.
Mr. Dockrill: I do not know that it is necessary for me to repeat the argument, but
succinctly it is this: We a r e a Municipality—the first Municipality,—we claim precedence
over all other applications, including other Municipalities, under section 44. We are not
required to prove that this water is needed for actual use, simply to allege that this application
is made bona fide and for the purpose of this Municipality alone, and that we are thereupon,
under the evidence that is given here, showing there is a quantity of water there entitled to
adjudication by you, under sub-section (b) of 42.
Mr. Howay : On behalf of the Municipalities of Richmond and Delta, I submit that the
position taken by by learned friend is not tenable. As I understand his position, what it
means is this :—He has made application for ten thousand inches of water, and because he has
priority in making that application he claims he is entitled to a record from you of ten thousand
inches. Because we come in second he says that is no reason why he should not have ten
thousand granted to him. I confess that section 42, sub-section (b), or in that neighbourhood,
seems to provide that the whole matter shall come up before the Lieutenant-Governor in
Council in connection with one of these applications by a Municipality, and I submit that there
must be some evidence by him as to what is reasonably required. I t is true that section 44
goes on to say that it is not necessary to show that the water is actually required for the present
use of a Municipality. There seems to be evidence as to the likelihood of the amount which
will be required, otherwise this Municipality could come in and corral the whole volume of
the lake and leave us out altogether. And again, supposing that three Municipalities should
make application at the same time, or two of them, as in the case of Richmond and Delta,
whose applications were posted at the same time. I submit that, inasmuch as you could not
tell who had precedence—which was posted first—you will have to ask for some evidence to
show what were the reasonable requirements of each one of these Municipalities, and my friend
ought to show something like that. I think some evidence should be produced on that point.
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Commissioner Robson : The application of a Municipality takes precedence only to the
extent to which, in my opinion, it can show it requires the water. If there were applications
from power companies the first one would have the preference, and if there were fifteen
thousand inches, and the first one showed it was entitled to ten thousand inches, I think it
would get the ten thousand, but it would not get fifteen. I think the same principle comes
in where there are several Municipalities. Companies are not in it at all, but the Municipalities are, and I think that notice must be taken of the pending applications of other Municipalities, otherwise there will be no need of you offering any proof as to the quantity required ;
but in view of the pending applications, I think it is necessary for you to show that you
require a certain amount for your purpose.
Mr. Dockrill: I will have to ask for a ruling on the matter, as I have no more evidence
to offer.
Commissioner Robson : I t is my opinion then that pending applications must he considered,
that is, the pending Municipal applications, not the others.
Mr. Bodwell: Another point which may be of interest to us is that Delta, Bichmond and
Coquitlam are applying on the 19th—Is that the date? Of course we are interested parties,
although you hold that we are out of it if Municipalities want water. Would your opinion be
that we could appear on the applications, that we would have a status to examine as to the
amount of water that Bichmond, Delta and Coquitlam are going to use. I suppose they will
have evidence on that point.
Commissioner Bobson : As between applications made by Municipalities and power companies there is nothing in common at all The Act explicitly states that applications by
power companies must be hung up.
Mr. Bodwell: I quite understand that. We would be interested in knowing whether we
would have any status, that is, if the Municipality wanted all the water.
Commissioner Bobson : I do not say you would have.
Mr. Bodwell : Would we not have a status to appear on the applications of the Municipalities, examine their witnesses, and perhaps take part in the proceedings, in order to show
they do not require the water.
Commissioner Bobson : I do not think so. They simply allege they require so much, but
when it comes to applications between themselves, then it is a different thing. I require proof
among themselves when there are several Municipalities, but the companies I do not think
have any legal status. After we get through with the Municipal applications then you can
come in.
Mr. Bodwell: That was the only point, whether we would be allowed to attend.
Commissioner Robson : I do not see you have any right to do that.
Mr. Bodwell: The application of the City of New Westminster is now concluded before
you.
Commissioner Robson: As far as I know, except that I want proof; and as I stated to Mr.
Dockrill, I think I ought to have proof as to the quantity of water that the Municipality of
Westminster reasonably requires. That could come up when the applications of the other
Municipalities come up.
Sir C. Hibbert Tupper : If I have followed you right, sir, the fact that the applications
are pending, that New Westminster is not adjudicated upon, and that the applications of
Delta and Bichmond are pending according to your ruling on the last occasion—and I think
rightly so—it is impossible to take up to-day either the Vancouver Company's or the Stave
Lake application.
Commissioner Robson : I don't see how we can.
Sir C. Hibbert Tupper : Because the Act makes an absolute stay.
Mr. Bodwell : There are two points on that. On the main point, of course, I have a
different opinion from what my friend has. There is the application respecting Trout Lake in
which there are no Municipal applications at all.
Commissioner Bobson : That is not affected at all.
Sir C. Hibbert Tupper : I am advised, and I think I have all the notices, that there is no
separate application for Trout Lake.
Commissioner Bobson: No.
Sir C. Hibbert Tupper: I t stands or falls on a notice, not an application, which affects
Coquitlam and which is absolutely stayed. We cannot take out part of this application and
deal with it. There is no separate application for any separate water. The notices that have
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been posted by the Power Company are three in number. They all apply to Coquitlam, every
one of them. The one in which Trout Lake is mentioned due 30th October under the notice;
the notice was given 30th October, and this is an application for a record of water from
Coquitlam and Trout Lakes, and it cannot be contended that they can proceed and give
evidence in regard to Trout Lake. The evidence that you would be receiving would be
evidence on an application for a record of water from Coquitlam and Trout Lakes, and the
proceedings under that are absolutely stayed, I take it, by the stay which affects all the other
applications offering to-day with Coquitlam.
Mr. Bodwell : We are making a separate application for five hundred inches from Trout
Lake, and it seems to me that that is an application or it is not; and if it is, it is an application
for five hundred inches from Trout Lake, and must be dealt with as such. But the whole
point, without pressing for the moment that particular part, the fact is before you officially
now that all the water in Coquitlam Lake is reserved. Now, under sec. 42, sub-section (b)
you may make a report to the Lieutenant-Governor in Council of your opinion as to the application before you of the City of New Westminster; when Coquitlam and Richmond and Delta
come before you, you will hear them and make a report on their case to the LieutenantGovernor in Council. If there were no notices before your Honour that any reservation had
taken place, you would then proceed to adjudicate on the Power Company's application ; but
knowing that you will have no power to adjudicate on these points, and that you will only be
in a position to make your report to the Lieutenant-Governor in Council, in those cases I
suggest there is no reason why you should not go on now and hear the evidence of the power
companies for the purpose of making your report. You will not be called upon to pass any
judgment on their applications. The Lieutenant-Governor in Council will ask for your
opinion, and ask you to report the evidence to him ; and that being so, it makes no difference
when you hear the evidence. You will, of course, make your report in your own time and
according to your ideas of what it ought to be, but you will not be called upon to give any
decision of Power Company cases.
Commissioner Robson : WTiat do you make of sub-section (a) of 42 ?
Mr. Bodwell : I n case it was anything else.
Commissioner Robson: I t does not say so.
Mr. Bodwell : " A l l pending applications to the Commissioner shall be stayed "; now, the
effect of the Gazette notice is no longer to you but to the Lieutenant-Governor. But we have
understood that, notwithstanding, the Lieutenant-Governor in Council would wish us to appear
before you and submit our evidence as I suppose they would want the benefit of your opinion
to help them, and that being so there is no pending application before you which shall be stayed
at all.
There is a case which will be submitted eventually to the Lieutenant-Governor in
Council in which evidence is to be given before you. and that being so there is no good reason
why we could not go on with that evidence to-day seeing we are here and prepared to go on,
and insomuch as you will not have to give judgment but simply make a report.
Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper : You are sitting, sir, as either a superior court under the Act
to take evidence or, as my learned friend says, you are merely sitting as an officer of the
Government to hear what parties have to say in order that the Lieutenant-Governor in Council
may be advised, which is purely an informal proceeding and not covered by any clause in the
Act, and I take it that if you had had any such official instructions all parties would have
been apprised of them. I t seems to me a singular thing if my learned friend had heard of
such instructions and that the Stave Lake Power Company had not.
We, of course, are not
before you in any such way.
We are here under the Statute, and we are here to express our
view.
We are of the opinion that unless we proceed as the Statute directs any right that we
may desire to acquire might be frustrated, and we certainly would not undertake to proceed
before you with this application pending while these municipal applications remain undecided.
And we would also object to your assuming jurisdiction of any kind whatever if these proceedings are stayed—it seems to me unless by consent or in some informal way you could not possibly
take evidence. There is no clause in the Statute that enables you to do it, and my learned
friend seems to feel the force of that position, having regard to the sections of the Statute.
Mr. Bodwell: He is supposed to be ready to meet any case we have to present, so whether
or not the evidence is taken to-day or next week will not affect him—whatever action the
Executive has taken does not affect that position at all.
They have either acted with power
or without it, and I don't know what instructions you have received, but we understood that
we were to be here to-day ready to go on with our evidence, notwithstanding the fact that the
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reserve had been published. But I only mention that by the way, and suggest that as we are
here and ready to go on, and as from the fact that the adjudication is not to be made by you
but must eventually be made by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council, it would be convenient
and right that we go on and not come here again.
If my learned friend meets that with the
statement he is not ready with his evidence, then there will be something to say about that,
but he has not taken that point yet.
Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper : My learned friend was not here on the last occasion when
we met, and that occasion, you will remember, resulted in this, that to-day was fixed for
the hearing of the Westminster application, and decision was given by your good self that
until the municipal applications were adjudicated, as the Act says, all other applications were
stayed. From the ruling of yourself no one would have proposed on a short day, as Saturday
was known to be, to be ready with any other evidence.
We knew that Delta and Bichmond
could not be out of the way, and in regard to Westminster no evidence could be taken until
these cases were considered.
My learned friend then says this stay has nothing to do with
these proceedings because the effect of the reserve under the Order in Council is to transfer all
this matter to the Lieutenant-Governor in Council. Well, then I take it, if that position be
correct and you take that view, you have no duty to perforin here to-day in either way. There
is no power given to you to take evidence in connection with that except when you reach
another stage, where the Lieutenant-Governor in Council may direct that further evidence be
taken.
I refer to section 86, after the record for instance is made, " a n d upon filing of the
documents authorised and the Lieutenant-Governor in Council may require further evidence."
Commissioner Bobson : I think that section 86 does not refer to the Commissioner at all
—it is after the Commissioner has adjudicated.
Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper : I t may be referred back to you for further evidence.
Commissioner Bobson : Not necessarily so. I should not think so, that is, after the whole
circumstances have been submitted to the Lieutenant-Governor in Council.
Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper : W e certainly will not take part in any formal proceedings,
and if you say you are going to sit and take down evidence for the Lieutenant-Governor in
Council without any instructions to do so we would withdraw, and should not be prejudiced in
any way.
WTe are not prepared for an inquiry of that kind.
We have had no notice of it,
direct or indirect.
Commissioner Bobson : At the last sitting I stated I was prepared to take evidence in
the case of the application of the Vancouver Power Company if nobody objected.
Sir C. Hibbert Tupper: Yes.
Commissioner Bobson : I think we are still in about the same position. If nobody objects
I cannot see any objection to taking the evidence. If anybody objects I cannot take it.
Mr. L. G. McPhillips: "Was it not understood there would be no objection? Didn't Sir
Hibbert Tupper at the last hearing consent to put it beyond power to object? I understood
we were to come here and give evidence on our application.
Sir C. Hibbert Tupper: We spoke of a short morning from 10 to 12, and I don't think it
is reasonable to suppose we would get through with more than the application of Westminster,
and I wish to deny in a most positive manner that I directly or indirectly was a party to any
agreement or any arrangement except as to the day. That was what we discussed, whether we
would sit to-day or on a later day.
Mr. L. G. McPhillips: I remember distinctly speaking about the question, whether I
could put' my evidence in, and that I was satisfied I could in that time. Why was it mentioned unless my learned friend allowed me to put that in.
Sir C. Hibbert Tupper: You don't suppose it was my duty to the time wanted or what
you were going into with your witness. I t would have been impertinence on my part to suggest anything about what he would do with his witness.
Commissioner Bobson : I have the minute here of the meeting, " Mr. McPhillips objected
and asked that a less remote day be set. The hearing was set for November 2nd., at 10 a. m.,
and all other applications pending were stood over until that day." That is the record. I am
really in doubt whether it would be proper to go on with this case, in view of the objection of
Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper.
Mr. Bodwell: That does not apply to the application of Trout Lake.
Commissioner Bobson : W i t h regard to that, Sir C. Hibbert Tupper takes it to be one
application. I don't look at it that way. I don't see that any applications are to be affected
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by taking the application. I t is now very much in the same position as if it had been a
separate application. I cannot see any objection to going on with that.
Sir C. Tupper : The Act does not contemplate as far as I can find out a joint notice of that
character at all. We have to look for authority for any notice under this Act, and there is not
a line I can find that suggests two applications in one. In this application the character of the
notice was very distinctly given under section 9. (Sir Hibbert Tupper here read the section
referred to). Reading it through from beginning to end you will see it contemplates one application, and one application only in the notice. There is no authority for including or covering two distinct applications in one notice. Now then, the foundation of the proceedings will
be that notice, and that notice reads not only for Trout Lake but as though it were a continuous part of the thing, Trout Lake and Coquitlam. That notice is undoubtedly a stay.
My learned friend would argue as only to Coquitlam. I t is absolutely a "stay," and we
cannot, it seems to me, reasonably pick out of that a portion of the application and say we are
dealing with the notice. I t is true, it is stayed so far as Coquitlam is concerned, but we are
dealing with another portion. W e rely very strongly on this Statute having stayed every proceeding under that notice.
Mr. Bodwell: I submit my friend has no status on the application of Trout Lake. He
appears only to object to a record being made for Coquitlam. We are getting water from two
different lakes, and I think your Honour will not feel the difficulty raised by my friend Sir
Charles at all. We are getting water from Trout Lake, and really we have nothing to do more
than present our formal proof. I t does not affect my friend's position as to Coquitlam; he has
all his rights there he ever had, and as he does not object to the water going out of Trout Lake
why should he be here at all on that proposition, or why should it make any difference to him
what the notice is. I t is simply a question for your Honour to judge upon. The idea is that
when a man applies for water he shall give notice to know if there are other rights to be
affected.
Sir C. Hibbert Tupper : I forgot to read to you the words which support the contention
I was undeavouring to make—that the whole of that application is stayed, whatever is in it, good
or bad. I quote from 42 (a).
Commissioner Bobson: That must be taken to be part of the water applied for by the
Municipality, as in the application of the power company. Now, the Municipality does not
apply for water in Trout Lake. My opinion is that the Trout Lake application may be taken
up. You have stated there is nothing in the Act showing that the two may be combined in
the one notice, but at the same time there is nothing showing it could not. I think I agree
with Mr. Bodwell that if the public rights have been guarded, if the public have been notified
of the fact that they had an opportunity of objecting, if the public interests were being
encroached on or threatened; but in looking over this application I am afraid there are certain
defects in the notice of the Power Company that might reasonably be objected to. Section 9
gives the particulars which must be contained in the notice. Now in the notice of the Power
Company, which includes Trout Lake, there is nothing stated. Some of the particulars required
by section 9 are not there, as far as Trout Lake is concerned. If it had given the particulars,
for example, the point of divergence, and the distance, and the head, and that sort of thing, in
regard to Trout Lake, I would have heard the application, but as these are absent in regard to
Trout Lake, we must comply with the Statutes. This notice does not comply with the Statute
as far as Trout Lake is concerned. That is the point it seems to be required by section 9 of the
Statutes. When the objection is offered I think we must comply strictly with the Statute.
Mr. Bodwell: We are here now, if there is any one to say we should not have the water
from Trout Lake.
Commissioner Robson: I can take a note of it.
Sir C. Hibbert Tupper : We of course claim the right to be heard on every part of that
notice.
Commissioner Robson : I think Sir Hibbert Tupper is perfectly right to object to Trout
Lake if he feels so disposed to post that application. I don't see that I can shut out anybody.
Mr. Bodwell: The only point I want to make is that we are here now ready to go on,
and that the only reason, apparently, for not getting out a record is you think it must be
heard in conjunction with the Coquitlam matter.
Commissioner Robson : No, I said I thought the notice, as far as Trout Lake is concerned,
is defective, because it does not comply with the Statute.
Mr. Bodwell: I think your Honour should not come to that conclusion, because it may
be possibly that the whole thing ought to be taken as one scheme, and while the record would
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be as to so many inches from Trout Lake and so many inches from Coquitlam, the notice of
application would refer to the whole scheme of diversion, in which case it would be necessary
to give the difference of altitude in Trout Lake. There would be no reason for giving a starting
point of elevation as to Trout Lake, and as to Coquitlam Lake the elevation would not exert
any effect upon lowering the surface of the water. The matter to be considered would be the
total amount of distance in elevation between the highest point which the water is taken from
and the lowest point to he used, and, therefore, in considering it as one scheme, and as your
Honour has held it would be, then the necessary information has been given, and will be given,
in evidence.
Commissioner Robson : You want me now to separate the Trout Lake business from the
whole concern and adjudicate on that ?
Mr. Bodwell: Yes.
Commissioner Robson : If you do that your notice is defective.
Mr. Bodwell: I think you are right in that. I was speaking without being as familiar
with the notice as Mr. McPhillips. I am prepared to assent, after you have pointed it out,
that was probably so. We could not treat Trout Lake as separate. You could treat it as one
application, and then the notice would apply to both.
Mr. Dockrill: I would like to have the application of the City adjudicated upon or formally
adjourned. I would ask for an adjournment until the other Municipal applications are heard.
Fifth December is the last.
Mr. Bodwell ? Can't it be brought on sooner ? Our Company wants to go on with their
work. W e do not want to wait any longer than necessary. Is there any reason why you
should not hear all these applications on one day ? Why could not Mr. Dockrill come in with
the others on the day Delta and Richmond are heard ?
Commissioner Robson : If he is ready to come in.
Mr. Dockrill: I would be perfectly ready and willing to come in if the Statute allowed it.
Mr. Bodwell : The Statute does not prevent it.
Commissioner Robson : When the adjudication is made on the one application, would not
that permit the hearing of pending applications in connection with the first ?
Mr. Dockrill: I take it that would not override the provisions of the Act, which provides
that notices must be posted a certain time.
Mr. Bodwell: Thirty days before the making of the record.
Commissioner Robson : Supposing somebody wants to object to the last application, he
waits till the last and posts another notice, and nothing can be done for another thirty days.
Mr. Dockrill: I t was put up yesterday.
Mr. Bodwell: It looks to me that we are being juggled a little bit between some one.
Mr. Dockrill: I wish to speak as to that. Yesterday when I was in the Court Room the
Reeve of Coquitlam, for whom we act, came up from our office; he said, I want you to post a
notice of application for Coquitlam Municipality. I said, can't you do it yourself; I don't want
to be mixed up in this? He says, no, I insist upon you, as the solicitor of the Municipality,
doing it. I n answer to Mr. Bodwell, I have never mentioned the matter before to anybody
residing in Coquitlam.
Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper: Time is flying.
Municipal applications are all to be heard on the 5th December, and the others on the 6th
December, at 11 o'clock a. no., in each case.
Adjournment.

VICTORIA, B. O , 9th November,

1901.

To the Hon. the Provincial Secretary, Victoria, B. C. :
SIR,—On August 31st of this year the Vancouver Power Co. posted at the office of the
Commissioner for the District of New Westminster a notice of application for the right to
divert unrecorded water from Coquitlam and Trout Lakes in the said district for mechanical
and industrial purposes.
On the 7th day of the following month, the Stave Lake Power Company posted at the
same office a notice of application for the right to divert unrecorded water from Coquitlam
Lake and River for mechanical and industrial purposes.
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On September 21st the City of New Westminster posted at the same office a water notice
applying for record of unrecorded water in Coquitlam Lake and River, as a source of supply to
an existing system of water-works owned and operated by the said city, and to augment such
system.
The quantity of water applied for is :—By the Vancouver Power Company, 5,000 inches;
by the Stave Lake Power Company, 10,000 inches; by the City of New Westminster, 10,000
inches. W e enclose copies of the various notices.
The Vancouver Power Company was incorporated four years ago, by and on behalf of the
British Columbia Electric Railway Company, Limited, for the purpose of acquiring waterpower for the said Electric Railway Company, in compliance with the terms of the " Water
Clauses Consolidation Act, 1897."
The hearing of the application of the Vancouver Power Company was set for the 30th
day of September, before Commissioner Robson. As the application of the City, by virtue of
the Act, takes precedence of the company's application, the hearing of all the applications was
adjourned till October 22nd.
I n the meantime the Vancouver Power Company had arranged with the City of New
Westminster that the City would appoint an expert hydraulic engineer, in whom they had
absolute confidence, to report on the scheme of the Vancouver Power Company, with a view of
ascertaining if the proposed works of the Company would endanger the water-works system of
the City, and if so, what steps should be taken to fully protect such works. The City
appointed as their consulting engineer Mr. A. McL. Hawks, of Tacoma, Wash., who had previously reported for the City on their water, works. About the second week of October he
rendered his report, a copy of which I enclose.
According to his report, instead of proving any danger to the City water supply, the proposed works of the Vancouver Power Company will materially benefit the City, provided
certain precautions are taken, namely : That the Company will erect and maintain a dam of
not less than five feet in height above low water at the southern end of Coquitlam Lake, and
will extend the supply pipe of the City through and beyond the said dam, and will place the
lowest level of the mouth of its tunnel not less than six inches higher than the highest point
of the City's supply pipe.
Although our engineers, Messrs. Hermon & Burwell, assure us that such precautions are
unnecessary, inasmuch as the smallest available quantity of water in the lake, at the lowest
water ever measured during the years that records have been kept, is 10,000 inches, and we
only ask for 5,000 inches, while the City's present consumption does not reach 50 inches, still,
in order to maintain our friendly relations with the City, we agreed to carry out the works
suggested by Mr. Hawks, and later on approved by the City's engineer, Mr. H i l l ; and at a
meeting held on November 4th, the City Council, with all votes but one, ratified the proposed
agreement, which, if carried out, will save the City an expenditure of at least $30,000 in two
or three years, when an extension of their water-works system is necessary.
When the adjourned hearing of the applications came up on October 22nd, we were again
prevented from presenting our evidence, on account of objections raised by the Stave Lake
Power Company, and partly because the City's solicitor stated that he wished to have further
expert reports on our proposition. The hearing was adjourned to November 2nd.
On that day we brought, at considerable expense to ourselves, our solicitor and counsel
from Victoria, and our expert witnesses, to New Westminster, prepared to give evidence.
The City's solicitor now stated that he would call no evidence at all, but rely on the statute.
The Commissioner informed the applicants that the Provincial Government had reserved
Coquitlam Lake for municipal and other purposes, but that he was prepared to take the evidence of the Vancouver Power Company, if there was no objection. The solicitor for the
Stave Lake Power Company objected, and we were again prevented from getting a hearing.
We then requested to be heard on our application for a record of water from Trout Lake,
also known as Lake Beautiful, but were also prevented from giving evidence as to this part of
our proposition.
I t also transpired that in addition to water applications from the Municipalities of Bichmond and Delta, which had been made subsequent to New Westminster's application, the
Municipality of Coquitlam had now posted an application the day before the adjourned hearing
on November 2nd, which circumstance would again put off the hearing of the Power Companies' applications for at least thirty days. The hearing was therefore again adjourned till
December 5th for the Municipalities' applications, and December 6th for the power companies'.
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As Coquitlam Lake is now reserved by the Provincial Government, and according to our
information a reserve was also put on Trout Lake under a former Order in Council, we respectfully apply to the Government for a record of 5,000 inches of water from Coquitlam Lake and
all the water of Trout Lake, also called Lake Beautiful, amounting to 500 inches, more or less.
If the record applied for is granted, our Company is prepared to immediately begin work on a
scheme which will cost us not less than $750,000, for which the money is already provided,
and we are ready to meet any reasonable demand made by the Government to secure the
water-works systems now existing, or that may be undertaken later by the municipalities now
applying for records. We are constrained to think that the delay is caused, and the opposition
advanced is being fostered, entirely by the Stave Lake Power Company.
We have never
interfered with the Stave Lake Power Company in their efforts to obtain water records of the
Stave Lake from the Government, nor do we interfere now, but naturally resent the course
being pursued by them.
We might add that at the request of parties interested in the Stave Lake Power Company
the agreement ratified by the New Westminster City Council on Monday last must now be
submitted to a vote of the citizens of New Westminster, at the time of the Municipal elections
on December 9th, and wish to point out that an agreement which is purely technical is not
one on which a popular vote can be taken with any guarantee for a proper appreciation of the
engineering questions involved.
The objects of our undertaking are to provide cheaper power for ourselves, and for present
and prospective industries at Vancouver and New Westminster. We have already offered
the City of New Westminster power for their electric lighting system at two-thirds of its
present cost.
We would respectfully request the Government to take the matter up at once, as the best
time for beginning the work is December, and unless we can make a start within the next
four or five weeks we will be put to the necessity of purchasing for our next winter's requirements considerable steam machinery, which would otherwise be unnecessary.
I have, etc ,
(Signed)

J. BUNTZEN,

General Manager, British Columbia Electric Railway Co., Ltd.,
for the Vancouver Power Company.
(4 enclosures).
Beceipt acknowledged 12th November.

NOTICE OF APPLICATION.

To David Robson, Esq., the Commissioner for the District
Columbia, and to all persons whom it may concern :—

of New

Westminster,

British

The Vancouver Power Company, Limited, by Frank Stillman Barnard and Albert Edward
McPhillips, both of the City of Victoria, in the Province of British Columbia, Directors of the
Vancouver Power Company, Limited, hereby give notice in the words and figures following:—
1. The Company is the applicant for the right to divert unrecorded water as hereinafter
set forth, from Coquitlam and Trout Lakes, for mechanical and industrial purposes and
purposes incidental thereto, as hereinafter set forth.
2. The lakes and streams from which source the water is intended to be taken, and as
herein applied for, are Coquitlam and Trout Lakes, the latter lake being also known as Lake
Beautiful, and the stream which forms the outlet of said Trout Lake.
3. The point of diversion and where the intended ditch head and dam is to be situated is
at a point about 2,000 feet north-westerly from the outlet of said Trout Lake.
4. I t is intended to divert the 5,000 inches applied for from Coquitlam Lake by means of
a tunnel from said lake to Trout Lake, there to be stored by means of a dam at or near the
outlet of said Trout Lake, and together with all the water from Trout Lake, amounting to 500
inches of water more or less applied for from Trout Lake, to return the same into the stream
which forms the outlet of Trout Lake at the lower end thereof.
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5. The difference in altitude between the point of diversion and the point where the
said water is to be returned is as follows : The point where the water will be returned into the
stream is 424 feet lower than the point where the water is to be diverted from the said
Coquitlam Lake.
6. The means by which it is intended to store the said water is by the erection of dams,
increasing the depth and head of water in the said lake.
7. The means by which it is intended to divert the water is by the construction of a pipe
line about 1,000 feet long to connect the dam with the power house at the outlet of said stream.
By the means of said pipe line the water will be conveyed from the said dam to the power
house on the east side of the North Arm of Burrard Inlet at the outlet of said stream.
8. The number of inches hereby applied for is 5,000 from Coquitlam Lake and 500 more
or less from Trout Lake.
9. The purpose for which it is required is for the generation of electricity for the purposes
of light, heat and power, to be transmitted, used and disposed of for mechanical, industrial
and commercial purposes, and particularly in the operation of motors, machinery, electric
lighting, the operation of tramways and other works for which such light, heat and power is
suitable and available.
10. The land upon which the water is to be used and taken is upon Section 7, Township
5, Range 7, west of the 7th I. M., New Westminster District.
11. The date of the posting of this notice of application pursuant to section 9 of the
" W a t e r Clauses Consolidation Act, 1897," was the 29th day of August, 1901.
12. The date on which the application will be made to the Commissioner for the granting
of the water record herein applied for will be the 30th day of September, A. D. 1901, at the
office of the said Commissioner at the City of New Westminster, in the Province of British
Columbia.
VANCOUVER POWER COMPANY, LIMITED.

F. S. Barnard,
A. E. McPhillips, Directors.
This is a true copy.
(Signed)
D. BOBSON, Government

Agent.

NOTICE OF APPLICATION.

To David Robson, Esq., the Commissioner for the District of New Westminster,
Columbia, and to all persons whom it may concern :

British

The Stave Lake Power Company, Limited, by H. Abbott and George C. Hinton, of the
City of Vancouver, in the Province of British Columbia, Directors of the Stave Lake Power
Company, Limited, hereby give notice in the words and figures following : —
1. The Company is the applicant for the right.to divert unrecorded water, as hereinafter
set forth, from Coquitlam Lake and the stream known as the Coquitlam River flowing from
said lake, for mechanical and industrial purposes incidental thereto as hereinafter set forth.
2. The lake and stream from which the water is intended to be taken, and is hereinafter
applied for, is Coquitlam Lake and Coquitlam River, which forms the outlet of said lake.
3. The point of diversion and where the ditch head or dam is to be situate is at the outlet
of said lake.
4. I t is intended to return the water diverted from said lake and stream into the Coquitlam River at or near Section 7, Township 5, Range 7, west of the 7th M., New Westminster
District.
5. The difference in altitude between the point of diversion and the point where the said
water is to be returned is as follows :—The point where the water will be returned to Coquitlam
River is 300 feet lower than the point where the water is to be diverted from the said lake
and river.
6. The means by which it is intended to store the said water is by the erection of a dam,
increasing the depth and head of water in the Coquitlam Lake and River at the point of
diversion,
7. The means by which it is intended to divert the water is by the construction of a steel
or lumber flume to follow the contour of line of the west bank of the said stream to the point
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where the water is to be returned to the Coquitlam River.
By means of the pipe-line the
water will be conveyed from the said outlet to the power house on Lot 289 or 360 aforesaid,
at which point it will be returned to Coquitlam River.
8. The number of inches hereby applied for is ten thousand (10,000) miner's inches.
9. The purpose for which this water is required is for the production of any form of
power, and for the generation of electricity for the purpose of light, heat and power to be
transmitted, used and disposed of for mechanical, industrial and commercial purposes, and
particularly in the operation of motors, machinery, electric lighting and the operation of tramways and other works for which such light, heat and power is suitable and available.
10. The land upon which the water is to be used and taken is upon Section 7, Township
5, Range 7, west of the 7th M., New Westminster District.
11. The date of the posting of this notice of application, pursuant to section 9 of the
" W a t e r Clauses Consolidation Act, 1897," was the 7th day of September, 1901.
12. The date on which the application will be made to the Commissioner for the granting
of the water record hereby applied for will be the 9th day of October, A. D. 1901, at the office
of the said Commissioner, at the City of New Westminster, in the Brovince of British Columbia.
T H E STAVE LAKE POWER CO., LTD.

H. Abbott, Director.
G. C. Hinton, Director.

W A T E R NOTICE.

In the matter of the " Water Clauses Consolidation Act" and "Amending

Acts."

Notice is hereby given that an application will be made by the Corporation of the City of
New Westminster, a Municipality duly incorporated under the laws of British Columbia, under
Part 3 of the " W a t e r Clauses Consolidation Act, 1897," for a record of unrecorded water in
Coquitlam Lake and Biver, as a source of supply to an existing system of water-works owned
and operated by the said City of New Westminster, and to augment such system.
(a.) The name of the applicant is the Corporation of the City of New Westminster.
(b.) The name of the lake, stream, or source is Coquitlam Lake and River, in the District
of New Westminster, in the Province of British Columbia.
(c.) The point of diversion is at the outlet of said Coquitlam Lake into Coquitlam River.
The water is intended to be used for the supply of a system of water-works, and will not be
returned to the stream at any point.
(d.) The means by which it is intended to divert the water is through the pipe-line now
constructed from said lake to the City of New Westminster, along the pipe-line right of way,
owned by the applicant, and by other pipes to be placed on said right of way.
(e.) The number of inches applied for is all the unrecorded water in said Coquitlam Lake
and stream, approximately 10,000 inches.
(/!) The purposes for which the water is required are all purposes for which water may be
required to be used by the applicant, or by the inhabitants of the Corporation, in the carrying
on of a complete and efficient water-works system for a Municipality.
(g.) The land upon which the water is to be used is the pipe-line right of way of the said
Corporation, extending from Coquitlam Lake to the reservoir within the limits of the said
Corporation, and from said reservoir throughout the streets and highways of the said Corporation.
This notice was posted on the 21st day of September, 1901.
Application will be made to the Commissioner the 22nd day of October, 1901.
T H E CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF N E W WESTMINSTER.

By Morrison & Dockrill,
Solicitors for the Corporation.
Certified true copy.
(Signed)
D. Bobson, Government Agent.
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REPORT OF EXPERT INVESTIGATION, N E W WESTMINSTER WATER-WORKS, IN RE PROPOSED
DIVERSION BY VANCOUVER POWER COMPANY.

By A. McL. Hawks, Con. Engineer.
Quality of Water.
I n the matter of the proposed diversion of water from Coquitlam Lake by the Vancouver
Power Company, the first question to be considered is as to how it will affect the purity of the
water supply to the City of New Westminster.
First.—The present regime of the Lake and Coquitlam River above the present intake
must be considered.
The shores of Lake Coquitlam, for much the greater part, are very steep, rock cliffs or
slides, with scattering tree-growth throughout; with only here or there, chiefly at the mouth
of streams flowing into the lake, a flat marsh or swampy place of a few acres extent. All along
the lake shore are. fallen trees or drift-wood, with one end on the shore and the other end lying
in the water, slowlv going to decay. Lying in the bed of the stream flowing out of the lake,
there is a quantity of drift-wood, which has been soaked so long that it no longer floats but
makes quite an amount of decaying snags immediately above the intake.
Under the present conditions, these swampy tracts are submerged to considerable extent
during periods of high water in the spring and early summer. Later on, when the water subsides, these marshes become very fertile tracts for the growth of rank marsh grass, and other
quick-growing swamp plants. Still later in the fall, when frost comes on, and the lake has
not yet risen to its flood height, this rank growth dies down, and begins to decay, and continues so to do until the lake level rises, and the waters absorb and carry off a portion of this
decaying organic matter, the remainder sinking to the bottom and adding to next season's
fertility.
I n times of high water in the lake the fallen trees and driftwood are dislodged from their
places on the shore and carried by the wind and currents towards the mouth of the lake, where
they are added to the snags already lying in the stream. As these snags all lie immediately
above the intake, the effect upon the water supply though slight is much more marked than if
a much greater quantity were lying out in the lake proper.
If a dam were built at the outlet to the lake, the water would be raised to some considerable height above the present low water, and although the storage in the lake would be utilised
as a reserve supply, proper precautions could be taken to prevent the lake level being lowered
to even its present low water level.
I t is a question for your legal advisers to decide as to whether—provided a power company in nowise changed the low-water stage in the lake from its normal level, nor raised the
high-water stage above its normal level,—if such company could be hold to damage the supply
to the City of New Westminster in any way, and could be estopped from carrying out their
work on that ground. On the other hand, provided proper agreements could be entered into
to carry out the following recommendations, certain benefits would accrue to the water supply
from the construction of a dam at the lake outlet:—
1st. That the present intake be extended up the lake to a point above the first riffle, where
there is a pool six or seven feet deep, and a proper intake be placed at that point; or else that
a small rock-filled dam be constructed immediately below the present intake, so as to constantly
maintain the water over the intake at a greater height than it is at present. If this be done,
it is a question for your City Solicitors to determine how much of this burden should be placed
upon the power company, and only my duty to point out that if they in nowise lowered the
water surface at the intake pipe, but took measures to maintain it at or above the present lowwater stage, from an engineering standpoint the City would in nowise be damaged.
2nd. That, previous to the raising of the lake level, the fallen trees and driftwood be
dragged out of the lake and destroyed by fire or otherwise.
3rd. That the tree-growth around the edge of the lake, which would be submerged by the
raising of the lake level, be felled and also be destroyed by fire or otherwise.
4th. That the swampy tracts, which will be submerged by raising the lake level, be
cleared off close to the roots, and the material removed beyond the lake limits.
5th. That the snags now lying in the channel be dragged out and destroyed.
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What portion of the above removal expense should be borne by the power company is
another legal question. I would only advise that clearly the power company should settle for
everything necessary to be done above the lake's normal high-water stage. I would also
suggest that while the removal of snags and such matter is going on the inflow to the City
should be shut off, so as to prevent any mud or silt from entering the pipe-line to lodge there,
or to be transported to the reservoir and the City services.
In my judgment, with these precautions observed, the construction of a dam would be a
benefit to the City's water supply; and if the work could be carried on without any expense to
the City, I would recommend it.
Quantity of Water.
In reference to the quantity of water supplied to the City of New Westminster, it may
be said that, if the Power Company does nothing more than maintain the level of water over
the present intake at its normal height, the flow will be in nowise changed, and, consequently,
no damage will accrue to the City of New Westminster. If, however, the intake pipe be
extended up to and above the proposed dam, the following benefit will accrue to the City of
New Westminster, owing to the increased head upon the pipe. That, whereas the flow of the
main at the minimum head, 31.03 ft. (which is taken from the Judge's report re Fire Investigation), assuming the coefficient N = .013 in Kutter's formula, V = o s/RS, will amount to
564,200 imperial gallons per diem ; with a 5-ft. dam increasing the head to 36.03 ft., the
discharge will equal 610,850 imp. gals, per diem ; with 10-ft. dam, which will increase the head
to 41.03 ft., the discharge will be 651,450 imp. gals, per diem; with 15-ft. dam, which will
increase the head to 46.03 ft., the discharge will be 691,200 gals, per diem ; with 20-ft. dam,
the head will be increased to 51.03 ft., and the discharge will equal 726,600 imp. gals, per
diem.
As will be shown later on, these figures are rather above what may be expected, as the
coefficient N = .013 is higher than that generally accepted by hydraulic engineers for this type
of pipe.
As will be seen from the above figures, the computed increase due to the dam at the
intake will equal 162,400 gals, per diem, or nearly 30 % of the present flow.
If the intake be extended to within the dam, and the lake-level maintained at three feet
above present low-water stage of the lake, this will make the head on the pipe 36.00 ft., or
the equivalent of a 5-ft. dam. As, however, the June flood keeps the flow up until some time
in July, or even August, when the draught upon the water supply is greatest, it is probable
that the lake will be overflowing the dam, and so give the effect of the full 20 ft. excess head,
furnishing 726,600 imp. gals, per diem ; and the low-water stage coming as it does late in
September or early October, the draught upon the City's supply will be greatly diminished, as
the period of garden irrigation has then passed.
By reference to my report of February, 1899, it will be seen that I refer to the advisability of constructing a dam at the intake very favourably, and, in one paragraph, practically
predict the present situation by saying : " If such a dam is not constructed by the City, it is
more than likely that some corporation, in these days of the growing value of water-powers,
will take up with the scheme of developing power from the Coquitlam and construct some such
structure. The City, as the prior user of water from this stream, will be able to name some
of the conditions upon which water can be taken, and will gain all the advantages of the additional head upon its supply main at no expense to itself."
I beg to add that I see no cause for changing my opinion upon the subject, and if the
benefits to be derived can be obtained at reasonable expense, I would recommend that it be
carried out.
Recommendations for future
Improvements.
The present supply to the City of New Westminster may be taken to approximately
represent one cubic foot per second, or about 650,000 gals, per diem ; or sufficient to supply a
population of 6,500 with 100 gals, per capita per diem, which is about proper for the present
supply.
If present conditions continue, and population increases in its natural ratio, it will not
be long before the water supply must be increased. The natural and economical method for
developing this increased supply is that pointed out in my report of February, 1899, under
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the heading, " Advisability of building a low-service reservoir." By following out the recommendations therein contained, at an expense of about $20,000, the supply can be nearly
doubled ; and by the expenditure of another $5,000 for building a new stand-pipe and connecting it with the low-service reservoir, and for putting an increased number of bands upon
the stave-pipe, an additional flow of, possibly, 10 % can be gained.
When the City has once more reached the limit of its supply, thus augmented, the population will approximate 15,000 using an average of 100 gals, per capita. The proper method
of procedure will then be to place meters upon all services and sell water at a sliding scale of
so much per 1,000 cubic feet, or 1,000 gals. The immediate effect of this policy will be to
reduce the quantity used from 100 gals, per capita to 60, 50, or even (as in the case of some
American cities) to 40 gals, per capita, without any menace to public cleanliness or public
health. This can be done at an approximate cost of, say, $25,000 to $30,000. In this
way a population of 25,000 people can be supplied from 1,500,000 gals, per diem or, say, 2 1
c. f. s.
If an agreement can be entered into with the Power Company, whereby the quantity of
5 cubic feet per second shall be reserved to the City of New Westminster for all time, without
any legal steps being taken for expropriation, I would recommend that this be done. This
quantity will be sufficient to supply a population of about 65,000 people with 50 gals, per diem.
As such supply would require a new inlet-pipe of about 22-inch diameter, it will be economical
to keep the per capita supply as low as possible by the use of meters on account of the great
expense of such a very long intake pipe-line.
With the City's supply thus carefully guarded, it seems to me there can be no question of
the future having been provided for.
Approximate

Estimate for Power

Plant.

An estimate upon the cost of a power plant for the City of New Westminster has been
made along the following lines :—1st. A dam at the outlet of the lake, similar to that outlined
in my report of February, 1899 : 2nd. A flume line along the side-hill from this dam to a
point near Pinnacle Peak, which will be all heavy side-hill work, owing to the precipitous and
unstable condition of the side-hill throughout this region : 3rd. A penstock with gates at the
end of flume line : 4th. A 5-foot steel pipe-line from the penstock to the power-house : 5th.
A power-house with water-wheels installed : 6th. An electric plant, complete, for producing
and transmitting power to the City of New Westminster.
To develop 6,000 horse-power; 200 c. f. s. with 300-foot head :—
Dam and headworks
Flume, 17,500 ft. @ $6 per foot
Penstock and gates
Five-foot steel pipe-line, 1,500 ft. @ $15
Power-house and wheels
Electric plant complete, including transmission lines
Contingencies, 10 %
Engineering,
5%
Total

$ 15,000
105,000
2,500
22,500
50,000
300,000
$495,000
49,500
24,750
$569,250

This total cost for developing 6,000 electrical horse-power upon the transmission lines
will make the cost, per horse-power developed, a little less than $95, which is approximately
the same as that of the Snoqualmie Falls Power Company, which now-supplies Tacoma and
Seattle with about 8,000 horse-power, and is considerably below the average of similar plants
at other places.
I t must be borne in mind in connection with these estimates that they are only approximations, as no exact figures can be given until a careful survey of the ground has been made
and proper plans and profiles prepared and estimates deduced therefrom.
I desire to warn
you that all such side-hill construction is a menace to your present intake pipe-line and should
be avoided.
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To develop 3,000 horse-power ; 100 c. f. s. with 300-foot head :—
Dam and headvvorks
Flume, 17,500 ft. @ $4 per foot
Penstock and gates
Three-foot 9-inch steel pipe-line, 1,500 ft. @ $10
Power-house and wheels
Electric plant complete
,

$ 15,000
70,000
2,000
15,000
35,000
200,000
$337,000
33,700
16,850

Contingencies, 10 %
Engineering,
5%
Total

$387,550

This total cost for developing 3,000 horse-power (electrical) upon the transmission lines
will make the cost per horse-power about $129, which is a fair price for such a plant.
To develop 1,500 horse-power; 50 c. f. s. with 300-foot head :—
Dam and head works
Flume, 17,500 ft. @ $3 per foot
Penstock and gates
Three-foot steel pipe-line, 1,500 ft. @ $7
Power-house and wheels
,.:
Electric plant complete

$ 15,000
52,500
1,500
10,500
25,000
130,000
$234,500
23,450
11,725

Contingencies, 10 %
Engineering,
5%
Total

$269,675

This total cost for developing 1,500 electrical horse-power upon the transmission lines
will make the cost per horse-power a little less than $180. Transmission plants of this size
are never economical in first cost and are scarcely worth consideration in this country of cheap
fuel from the saw-mills.
I beg to remain, etc.,
(Signed)

A. McL. HAWKS,

New Westminster, B. C, October, 1901.

Consulting

Engineer.

PROVINCIAL SECRETARY'S OFFICE,

12 th November, 1901.
S I R , — I have the honour to forward herewith, for the information of the Acting Chief
Commissioner, an application of the Vancouver Power Company for a record of 5,000 inches
of water from Coquitlam Lake, and all the water of Trout Lake, approximating 500 inches.
I am, etc.,
(Signed)

A. CAMPBELL BEDDIE,

Deputy Provincial
The Deputy

Secretary.

Commissioner.

VANCOUVER, B. C , November 23rd, 1901.
To the Clerk of the Executive
Victoria, B. C. :

Council,

SIR,—We have the honour to enclose a petition of the Stave Lake Power Company,
Limited, addressed to His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor in Council.
We are, etc.,
(Signed)

TUPPER, PETERS & GILMOUR.

Receipt of letter and petition acknowledged 25th November.
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[ENCLOSURE.]

To His Honour the Hon. Sir Henri Gustave Joly de Lotbiniere,
Governor of British Columbia, in Council:

K. G.M.G., P.C.,

Lieutenant-

The petition of the Stave Lake Power Company, Limited, humbly sheweth :
That the following applications for water records were made, under the provisions of the
" Water Clauses Consolidation Act " :—
Vancouver Power Company, 23rd August, 1901 ; Vancouver Power Company, 30th
September, 1901 ; Stave Lake Power Company, 21st October, 1901; Vancouver Power Company, 30th October, 1901.
The fi llowing applications were made on behalf of Municipalities for the same water :—
New Westminster, 2'2nd October, 1901 ; Delta, Richmond, Coquitlam.
On the 21st October, 1901, various applicants, represented by their counsel, appeared
before the Commissioner, David Robson, Esq., at his office in New Westminster, at which
place, according to the notices, the applications were to be made.
One of the applications of the Vancouver Power Company coining on to be heard, counsel
for the Stave Lake Power Company claimed a right to appear. Objection being taken by
counsel for the Vancouver Power Company, after argument, the Commissioner decided that
the Stave Lake Power Company had such a status as a rival applicant that its counsel could
be heard on the applications of the Vancouver Power Company.
The hearing proceeded, and the point was raised that the application of the Municipality
of New Westminster stayed all proceedings on the applications of both the power companies,
pending the adjudication upon the New Westminster application. The Commissioner, having
so ruled, adjourned the application of the City of New Westminster until Saturday, the 2nd
day of November, 1901, at 10 a.m. On the 2nd day of November, 1901, at 10 a.m., counsel
duly appeared before the Commissioner representing respectively the City of New Westminster,
Vancouver Power Company, Stave Lake Power Company, Municipalities of Coquitlam, Delta
and Richmond, when, after argument, the application of the City of New Westminster was
proceeded with, and the hearing further adjourned until the 5th day of December, 1901, at
11 a.m., before the said Commissioner. The hearing of the cases of the Vancouver Power
Company and the Stave Lake Power Company were adjourned till the 6th day of December,
1901, at 11 a.m., before the said Commissioner.
Between the meetings of the 21st October, 1901, and the 2nd November, 1901, a notice
appeared in the British Columbia Gazette, dated 7th November, 1901 (the notice being dated
30th October, 1901), to the effect that all the unrecorded water in Coquitlam Lake and River
was reserved for the purpose of making provision whenever it appeared expedient as a source
of supply for water-works systems, for power purposes, or for such other purposes as might be
deemed advisable, and this notice was signed by the Deputy Commissioner of Lands and
Works.
That in the opinion of the Commissioner at New Westminster, this action on the part of
Your Honour in Council did not affect the proceedings then pending before him as aforesaid,
beyond changing the character of the record which might ultimately be granted from that of
a permanent record to an interim record.
That your petitioners have been advised by counsel that all the applications of the
Vancouver Power Company, as aforesaid, are invalid, in that the notices of the same do not
comply with the statutory requirements in that behalf made and provided, and in other respects,
and that when the Commissioner is in a position to adjudicate upon these claims your
petitioners have a right to expect that the application of your petitioners, being in compliance
with the said provisions and therefore prior in date, will be entertained, and an interim record
duly granted which will have precedence of all other applications on the part of water-power
companies.
That on the 13th day of November, 1901, the Deputy Commissioner of Lands and Works
advised the law firm of Tupper, Peters & Gilmour, of Vancouver, B. C , by letter addressed to
them, that the Honourable the Premier, at that time acting Chief Commissioner of Lands and
Works, would hold an inquiry into matters relating to the applications of the various parties
for records of water to be taken from Coquitlam Lake and Biver, at his office in the Parliament
Buildings, on Monday, the 18th day of November, 1901, at 11 a. m., and the said firm were
requested to be present on behalf of their clients with any necessary witnesses and evidence
" which may lead to a decision being arrived at with the least possible delay."
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Neither from this Commissioner, nor otherwise, were your petitioners able to ascertain
the nature of the proposed inquiry, nor the preparation required to be made, and counsel were
unable to advise as to any authority existing for such an inquiry.
That on the 15th of November, 1901, the said firm of Tupper, Peters & Gilmour telegraphed
to the Deputy Commissioner, as aforesaid, acknowledging receipt of his communication, and
stating it was absolutely impossible to get ready for Monday, and asking for a copy of the
Order in Council on which was founded the notice of the 30th October, 1901, as aforesaid.
The agents of the said firm at Victoria were also requested, by telegraph, to see the Deputy
Commissioner, in order to obtain copy of said Order in Council, and on the said date the said
agents telegraphed that the Deputy Commissioner had refused to supply a copy of the Order
in Council as aforesaid. On the same day the Deputy Commissioner, ignoring the said request
for a copy of the Order in Council, wrote the said firm of Tupper, Peters & Gilmour, stating
that the Prime Minister would probably leave Victoria for California on Tuesday, and added
that there did not appear to be any probability of postponing the hearing.
Your petitioners were thus compelled at the last moment to instruct counsel to attend
and press for a postponement of the proposed hearing, and to ascertain, if possible, the
authority therefor, and in the event of a refusal to protest against the proposed proceedings as
wholly ultra vires and not contemplated by the Statute, and as being an interference with the
vested rights and with the proceedings of the judicial tribunal in this behalf constituted by
the Legislature.
That on the said 18th day of November, 1901, when counsel accordingly appeared at the
time and place appointed, the Honourable the Prime Minister was not in attendance, but the
Attorney-General and the Honourable J. D. Prentice presided, the Vancouver Power Company
appearing also by counsel; certain Municipalities were represented, and your petitioners were
represented by counsel, in accordance with the above instructions.
That an adjournment asked for by your petitioners' counsel was refused, and the AttorneyGeneral and the Honourable Mr. Prentice proceeded to hear representations and evidence on
behalf of the Vancouver Power Company, contrary to the protest of your petitioners' counsel.
Your petitioners submit, firstly, that a jurisdiction was asserted by the Attorney-General
and Mr. Prentice under section 136 of the " W a t e r Clauses Consolidation Act," and that the
action in the premises on the part of the members of the Executive as aforesaid is without
legal sanction, statutory or otherwise, in so far as the applications aforesaid are concerned;
and, secondly, that the stay caused by the applications of the Municipalities is effective to
prevent the present proceedings.
That while, under the "Water Clauses Consolidation Act," all unrecorded water is vested
in the Crown, it is distinctly provided by section 4 thereof that no person shall divert or
appropriate any water excepting under the provisions of that Act.
The scheme of said Act, it is submitted, regulates the acquisition of water by record to be
primarily obtained as therein is provided from the regular statutory authority, outside and
independent of the Executive, and according to clearly-stated principles in the case of water
required :—
(a.) For ordinary domestic, agricultural and mining purposes:
(b.) The supply of water by water-works systems to cities, towns and unincorporated places:
(c.) The acquisition of water for industrial or manufacturing purposes.
That in and by the said Act great care has been taken that all applications should be
primarily determined judicially and on evidence sanctioned by oath duly administered.
Priority of notice, of application is to constitute priority of right. Exception to the finality of
judicial determination of claims for water records is made in the case of applications by
municipalities.
I t is to be observed that in connection with the applications of power companies the time
for the interference of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council is specially provided for, in so far
that the judicial determination heretofore referred to is in the case of power companies made
subject to the approval thereof by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council (section 84).
The Legislature has provided by section 86 the time for the action of the LieutenantGovernor in Council, namely, after the filing of the documents specified in section 85 ; and
while under section 86 the Governor in Council may vary the decision respecting the amount
of unrecorded water the company may record, etc., it is nowhere suggested that the LieutenantGovernor in Council may prefer the application of one company to another, or cancel the
record obtained by one company and grant the water applied for to another.
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So, again in section 89, the power given to the Gold Commissioner to amend water records
contemplates that the record has been legally obtained from the Commissioner, and that the
certificate by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council has made an amendment necessary.
Your petitioners admit that an important exception in connection with the complete
adjudication and granting of water records, being in the hands of legal tribunals, is covered by
section 136 of said Act.
This section, however, clearly contemplates the interference on the
part of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council only in the case where water is required for public
purposes. The only quasi-private purpose mentioned is the case of a water-works system.
I t is further submitted that the scheme of the Act, and of the sub-sections of section 136
in particular, make it clear that, even under this clause, in order that the Lieutenant-Governor
in Council may interfere and direct the recording of water outside of and independent of the
judicial tribunal otherwise constituted, there shall not only be an Order in Council reserving
the unrecorded water, but there shall be in that Order in Council an indication of the precise
purpose for which the water is reserved, and the specific terms and conditions upon which
such unrecorded water, so reserved, shall be available, shall in the Order in Council be found,
so that the public may understand how such water is to be acquired from the Crown, and may
govern themselves accordingly.
Your petitioners submit that special care has been taken to prevent the LieutenantGovernor in Council exercising any general powers of disposition of the water so reserved.
Your petitioners call attention to the form of the notice in the Gazette referred to, where
the words " for power purposes " are introduced without any express authority from the words
of section 136, and contrary, as your petitioners submit, to the intention of the Legislature.
Your petitioners again call attention to the scheme and theory of section 136, and submit
that before action is taken thereunder the Lieutenant-Governor in Council is supposed to have
concluded that it has become necessary to reserve certain water for one or other, and at any
rate and at all times for some definite purpose, among the different purposes mentioned by the
section, namely :—
(a.) For the use of the Crown ;
(b.) For municipal purposes ;
(c) For the purpose of making provision as a source of supply for water-works systems ;
(d.) For such other purposes as may be deemed advisable ;
and these, it is submitted, should be specified and determined before this section is acted upon.
These " other purposes " obviously cannot relate to the express purposes regulated by the
Act, such as the present applications, for which a complete procedure has been provided by the
Legislature.
I t is submitted with great confidence that not a section, not a line, not a sentence, from
one end of the Act to the other, suggests that a political body shall, at any time, be called
upon to adjudicate between the rival claims of private applicants, whether the private applicants be power companies or the other classes of private applicants covered by the Act.
Your petitioners recognise with confidence the strength of their position under the law,
as presented by the foregoing provisions, and in order to meet any inquiry as to the necessity
of this representation, beg respectfully further to submit that great damage and injury may
be caused by any unwarranted usurpation of authority on the part of the Executive in this
connection, notwithstanding that in the end the Courts of law may prevent such interference
from becoming effective.
Your petitioners, while not wishing to make any statement of facts, ex parte, respecting
the contested claims now before the Commissioner at New Westminster and the subject of
judicial consideration, to illustrate the great detriment and injury to which they are being
subjected by the action of members of your Government, may put, as a hypothetical case, or a
case that may occur in the future, the position of a rival applicant for a water record who,
finding his application of no validity under the Statute, and cut out completely by a prior
valid application, and desiring that the legal and possibly successful applicant may be
embarrassed in financial operations dependent upon the record, may at once resort to a political
body, as distinguished from a judicial, and by claiming great influence (entirely unwarranted,
but nevertheless effective) with that political body, create the impression in financial circles
that the Executive will, regardless of legal rules prevailing and the Statutes and principles
governing judicial tribunals, deal with the matter from a point of expediency, the consequence
being that the party having the right to the record may obtain the record ultimately, meanwhile having lost the necessary financial support which was the motive for the application for
the record, and without which the record may become useless.
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Your petitioners submit that the application of the Vancouver Power Company to the
Executive, under the circumstances, is unprecedented and unwarranted, and if entertained and
acted upon will be fraught with consequences never contemplated by the Legislature. The
transfer of private rights in contest before a tribunal constituted for the purpose by the
Legislature to a political body will, it is submitted, not only retard the direction of capital to
this Province in connection with the development of water-power, but will engender grave
fear that the Executive will carry this policy further and so render precarious rights hitherto
supposed to be dependent upon the law of the land, as administered by the Courts of Justice.
Should the opinion of your petitioners, under advice of their counsel as herein stated, not
be in accordance with the views of Your Honour, your petitioners submit that the exercise of
such jurisdiction on the part of the Executive, under the circumstances, should be preceded by
a reference to the Supreme Court of British Columbia, in order that the power of the Executive
should, in this regard, be judicially determined, or at least that no final action should be taken
by the Executive until your petitioners are afforded an opportunity of challenging such a
course as is contemplated by means of a writ of prohibition directed to such officers as may be
called upon by any proposed Order in Council to record a water right in the premises.
And your petitioners will humbly pray, etc.
Dated the 23rd day of November, 1901.
(Signed)
H. ABBOTT, Chairman.
n

J. B. FERGUSON, Secretary.

VICTORIA, BRITISH COLUMBIA, 25th November, 1901.

To the Honourable the Provincial Secretary,
Government Buildings, Victoria, B. G.:
S I R , — I have the honour, in reference to the point discussed by me with you relative to
the application of the Vancouver Power Company for 5,000 inches from Coquitlam Lake, and
with reference to the point taken by Mr. Wilson upon the inquiry held, to offer the following
reasons in opposition to Mr. Wilson's contention. Before stating them I may say that I was
prepared to answer the contention then made, but was of the view that the Honourable the
Attorney-General was so clear upon the point (and as there was little time available) that it
was unnecessary.
The view I take of the matter is this:—That under section 136 and sub-sections of the
"Water Clauses Consolidation Act," there are two classes of reservations; one is an Order in
Council reserving the unrecorded water for one or more of the purposes set forth in the first
part of said section 136 ; but following that an Order in Council establishing a reserve—that
is, carrying out a certain reserve of water as against a general reserve—is as is provided by subsection (2), to contain a direction for a record of the amount of water reserved with all necessary particulars.
I t is apparent that this must be the true reading of the Statute, as otherwise it would
prevent a general reserve being made—which is so often in the public interest—and compel the
Lieutenant-Governor in Council to await advice as to particulars that cannot be obtained save
after a lapse of a considerable time.
Further, the Commissioner, as is well set forth in sub-section (2), is the mere mandatory
of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council. H e " shall make the necessary records to give effect
thereto." This puts the question in the plainest terms.
Sub-section (3) shows that reservation is one thing and record another. Provision is made
for the interim user of water that stands reserved or even recorded prior to the establishment
of any works; but in such case any interim user gives no right when interfered with for any
compensation.
Sub-section (4) also makes still more clear that there may be more than one Order in
Council and more than the Order in Council creating the reserve. I t will be noticed that this
language is used:—" The Lieutenant-Governor in Council may, in the Order in Council making
such reserve, or in any subsequent Order or Orders, specify and declare the terms and conditions upon which the unrecorded water so reserved shall be available, and may be acquired
from the Crown, for use in respect of the purposes for which it has been so reserved."
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The latter part of the above section makes it clear that in all cases where a reserve has
been made, that in all such cases the Crown will act directly by the Lieutenant-Governor in
Council, to the denial of all other declared procedure.
The reason being clear that when the public interest in a particular manner requires to
be safeguarded, procedure before a subordinate officer cannot be allowed to interfere with that
public interest.
I t seems to me that it is clear that the Legislature intended to place the full power in the
Lieutenant-Governer in Council to deal with water records, when the public interest required
that it should be done.
I cannot see what argument can be adduced to show why section 136 should not be given
full effect to. I t is, I submit, a code in itself, apart from the other sections of the Act.
I t is useful in this connection to consider the language of Jessel, M.R., at p. 180, in Nuth
v. Tamplin (1881), 8 Q.B.D., 247 :—"Now anyone who contends that a section of an Act of
Parliament is not to be read literally must be able to show one of two things, either that there
is some other section which cuts down its meaning or else that the section itself is repugnant
to the general purview of the Act."
I t is also a well-known rule in the construction of Statute law that the later sections
shall govern the earlier, and Mr. Wilson's contention is founded upon the effect of earlier
sections to section 136.
Then there is the further point that the Power Company's application comes under section
84 of the " W a t e r Clauses Consolidation Act," and it is always within the province of the
Lieutenant-Governor in Council to pass upon any such application, as witness the language of
sub-section (2):—"It shall be sufficient for the Power Company, in posting and forwarding the
notice of application by said section 9 prescribed, in lieu of describing the lands on which the
water is intended to be used, to insert a statement that the water applied for is to be used for
the proposed undertaking and work of the Power Company, subject to the approval thereof by
the Lieutenant-Governor in Council."
I t could never have been intended that there would be the power of reservation in the
Lieutenant-Governer in Council but no power of directing that any particular record should
be made. This, I submit, is in direct contradiction to the Statute, and is not in accordance
with the purview of the Act.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

A. E. MCPHILLIPS.

VICTORIA, B. C , 27th Nov., 1901.

The Honourable the Provincial Secretary,
Government Buildings, Victoria, B. C.
RE

VANCOUVER POWER COMPANY.

SIR,—With further reference to the subject-matter of the above Company's application
for 5,000 inches of water from Coquitlam Lake and 500 inches from Lake Beautiful or Trout
Lake, I have the honour to supplement the views expressed by me upon the effect of section
136 of the " W a t e r Clauses Consolidation A c t " by the opinion of Mr. E. V. Bodwell, K.C.,
the original opinion being herein enclosed. I t will be seen that Mr. Bodwell is quite clear
upon the effect of the section and sub-section, and has been pleased to agree with the reasoning contained in my letter to you of the 25th instant.
I have no hesitation in stating that the Stave Lake Company is not acting in a bond fide
manner. All the evidence goes to prove this. What has that Company done to show that it
intends to carry out the construction of its proposed undertaking ? I t stands the recorded
owner of 75,000 inches of water from Stave River, and yet nothing done in the way of
providing a use for same. On the other hand, the Vancouver Power Company are ready to at
once spend a large sum of money—and are willing to enter into any required guarantee for the
immediate expenditure of a large sum of money—and the British Columbia Electric Bailway
Company, Limited, stands ready to use the power when generated. Now, the electric railway
is a work of public utility—one of great convenience—and it is in the best interests of the
public that the best possible service should be provided. To accomplish this, more power is
desired, and at a cheaper rate.
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The B. C. Electric Railway Company, Limited, as you also know, supplies light, and with
the utilisation of the power generated as proposed, larger areas can be covered and light can
be provided at a cheaper rate. This is also a matter of great public convenience.
To return to the question of delay, I may say that it is a matter for remark that the
Stave Lake Company, although the applicant for water, always seems desirous of postponing
the consideration of the matter. This is singular, as, if it were acting bond fide, it would be
pressing on the consideration of the matter. I consider that the previous applications on the
part of the municipalities were stimulated by the Stave Lake Company, if not actually initiated
by that Company, of which I have great reason to believe, and I have not the slightest doubt
that when the return date before the Water Commissioner would come again, namely the 5th
December, that it would be found that some other municipality had applied, and again there
would be a postponement of 30 days ; and as it is possible for about half a dozen more municipalities to apply, it is apparent that the time has come for the Lieutenant-Governor in Council
to act in the matter to prevent the retarding of actual construction of a large work which will
be of great public advantage.
The Stave Lake Company has not in any way shown that it is capable of carrying out
any undertaking upon the lines that my clients propose to operate, and, as I have previously
said, everything points to a policy of embarrassment to my clients, and I trust and submit that
a speedy determination be come to, as it is essential that work should be commenced during
the coming month.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

A. E. MCPHILLIPS.

[ENCLOSURE.]

VICTORIA, B. C , NOV. 27th, 1901.

A. E. McPhillips, Esq.,
Barrister, dec, Victoria, B. C.
R E VANCOUVER POWER COMPANY.

DEAR S I R , — I have your letter asking me for my opinion as to the construction to be
placed on section 136 of the " W a t e r Consolidation Act." I have also had the pleasure of
perusing the letter which you wrote to the Honourable the Provincial Secretary on this
subject, and I have no hesitation in saying that I thoroughly agree with your argument as set
out in that letter. I t would be perfectly futile for the Legislature to give the Executive
power to reserve the water if they could not afterwards deal with it, and the section certainly,
on its face, implies that it was the intention of the Act that the Executive should have
disposing power over the water which they had reserved for particular purposes. Sub-section
(2) shows this. In any event, it seems to me that, on broad principles, there can be no
question as to this power. The Water Commissioner has only power to deal with certain
applications—these are not applications in respect of which a reserve has been created. 'The
Water Commissioner's authority cannot be extended by implication; it is to be found in the
exact language of the Act or it does not exist. I t seems to me perfectly clear that the Water
Commissioner's authority, as I have stated, does not extend to any jurisdiction over water
reserved by the Executive. That being so, the Executive have the power to deal with it, as
they are the only body in existence who have any authority whatever in the matter. No one
pretends that this would have to be the subject of a special Act of the Legislature, and as the
Water Commissioner has no authority it would be clear, I think, apart from any other
provision, that the Executive are the proper body to give directions, and when they have so
decided, sub-section (2) requires the Water Commissioner to make the records according to the
order pronounced by the Executive.
Yours truly,
(Signed)

E. V. BODWELL.
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[TELEGRAM.]

VICTORIA, B. C , 4th December, 1901.

To David Robson, New Westminster :
You will please adjourn all applications for water records for Coquitlam and Trout Lakes
until after you have carried out instructions in letter I am sending you to-night.
(Signed)

J. D. PRENTICE,

Provincial

Secretary.

PROVINCIAL SECRETARY'S OFFICE,

VICTORIA, B. C , 4th December, 1901.

D. Robson, Esq.,
Water Commissioner, Westminster
New Westminster:

District,

SIR,—Acting under the powers conferred by sec. 136 of the " W a t e r Clauses Consolidation Act, 1897," the Lieutenant-Governor in Council has directed that you issue to the
Vancouver Power Company, Limited, a record for 5,000 inches of water from Coquitlam Lake
and all the water of Trout Lake. These records are to be subject to the terms and conditions
set out in the Order in Council, copy of which is enclosed herewith.* Also enclosed herewith
is a copy of the notice attached to the report of the Acting Provincial Secretary, which is
referred to in said Order in Council.
Immediately on receipt of this letter you will comply with the provisions of the said
Order in Council, and advise me by telegram that you have done so. As soon as the records
are issued, you will please forward them to Messrs. McPhillips & Williams, of Vancouver,
solicitors for the said Vancouver Power Company.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

J. D. PRENTICE,

Acting Provincial

Secretary.

*See letter of 5th December, 1901, to the Manager of the B. C. Electric Railway Co., Ltd.

[TELEGRAM.]

N E W WESTMINSTER, B. C , December 5th, 1901.

Provincial Secretary, Victoria :
Have issued this day water records to Vancouver Power Company for five thousand and
five hundred inches, respectively, as directed by your letter of yesterday.
(Signed)

D. ROBSON.

N E W WESTMINSTER, B. C , December 6th, 1901.

S I R , — I n accordance with the instructions contained in your letter of the 4th instant, I
issued yesterday two water records in favour of the Vancouver Power Company, Limited, for
5,000 inches of water in Coquitlam Lake and 500 inches in Trout Lake, and wired you to that
effect. The conditions set out in the Order in Council are endorsed on the back of the records.
I have also notified Messrs. McPhillips & Williams, Vancouver, that these records are ready
for delivery to them on the payment of the fees as provided.
I n view of the action taken by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council in this matter, I
suppose it is not expected that the other applications pending for Coquitlam water shall be
proceeded with before me, but that they will be dealt with as required, in the same way as the
application of the Vancouver Power Co. If this supposition is not correct I shall be glad to
be advised.
I t is certainly very embarrassing for the applicants to have a day set for
hearing and all preparations made and the arrangements cancelled on a few hours' notice.
There are still undecided the applications of the City of New Westminster, and the Municipalities of Delta, Bichmond and Coquitlam.
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I beg to forward herewith a letter from the B. C. M. T. & T. Co., referring to the use of
water in Lake Beautiful (or Trout Lake). This letter was received by me on the 14th
November and was being held until I sent my report on the applications to Victoria, when I
intended to include it.
The Municipality of Coquitlam has also protested against the granting of any application
which contemplates permanently diverting the water from Coquitlam Biver. I am forwarding
that as well, as it relates to the application of the Vancouver Power Company.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

The Honourable
The Provincial

D. ROBSON,

Government

Agent.

Secretary,
Victoria, B. G.

[ENCLOSURES—3.]
VANCOUVER, B. C , November 11th, 1901.

D. Robson, Esq.,
Deputy Commissioner of Lands and Works,
New Westminster, B. C.:
DEAR SIR,—We have held for a number of years from the Dominion Government a
Timber Limit situated on Lake Beautiful, and have already operated it, making use of the
brook running out of the lake into salt water, in accordance with the rights given us by the
Dominion Begulations.
We have just made a contract with a party to resume operations and take out the timber
on our limit. I t has come to our knowledge that the Vancouver Power Co., however, is makingapplication for water rights on this brook, and while we do not know that this will interfere
with our operations, we desire to enter our protest against any rights being given that will
prevent us from getting out our timber.
Yours very truly,
(Signed)

T H E BRITISH COLUMBIA MILLS TIMBER AND TRADING CO.,
C. M. BEECHER,

Assistant General Manager.

COQUITLAM, B. C , Sept. 16th, 1901.

D. Robson, Esq.,
Government Agent, New Westminster :
DEAR SIR,—The Coquitlam Council, having heard that a company are applying for a
charter to take 10,000 inches of water from the Coquitlam River and pipe the same to Port
Moody, have directed me to send you a copy of resolution passed in open Council on September
14th, 1901 :—
" T h a t this Council requests the Government to grant no charter for water to any company who take the water away without returning same to the river."
I am, etc.,
(Signed)

J O H N SMITH, C. M. C.

COQUITLAM, B. C , Sept. 23rd, 1901.
D. Robson, Esq.,
Government Agent, New Westminster:
SIR,—In reply to your communication of September 19th, re Coquitlam water being
granted to a company, I beg to say that the reason the Coquitlam Council object is because
the taking of 10,000 inches from the river will most certainly completely dry up the river
during the summer and fall.
I am, etc.,
(Signed)

J O H N SMITH, C. M. C.

1296

APPLICATIONS FOR W A T E R RECORDS.

1902

PROVINCIAL SECRETARY'S OFFICE,

5th December, 1901.
SIR,—Beferring to your communication of the 9th inst, in regard to the application of the
Vancouver Power Company, Limited, for water records, I have the honour to acquaint you of
the passage of an Order in Council, dated the 4th instant, which directs that the Water Commissioner for the Westminster District shall forthwith issue to the Vancouver Power Company,
Limited, records for 5,000 inches of water from Coquitlam Lake, and all the water from Trout
Lake, amounting to 500 inches, more or less, to be diverted, stored and applied in the manner
set out in the notice of application of the said Company to the said Water Commissioner, and
that the said grant of water to the said Company shall be subject to the following additional
terms and conditions, namely :—
1. The Company shall erect a dam at the outlet of Coquitlam Lake five feet in height:
2. The Company shall extend the present intake pipe of the City of New Westminster's
water-works system through said dam into Coquitlam Lake to a point above the first riffles
where there is a pool six or seven feet deep, and place a proper intake at said point:
3. That the Company shall have said intake pipe properly placed and fully protected :
4. That the floor of the Company's tunnel drawing off water from Coquitlam Lake shall
be at least six inches higher than the top of the highest point of the said City's intake pipe :
5. That the Company shall be responsible to the said City for all damage done to any
portion of the City's water-works system by the construction of the Company's works :
6. That the works mentioned in the above conditions shall be executed at the expense of
the Company, and to the satisfaction of the City's Engineer :
7. That the Company shall furnish a bond to His Majesty, to the satisfaction of the
Lieutenant-Governor in Council, that the Company will comply with the above-mentioned
terms and conditions :
8. That the above-mentioned grants of water are to be subject to the rights, if any, of the
Coquitlam Water-works Company.
I am, etc.,
(Signed)

The General Manager,
B. G. Electric Railway Co., Ltd.,
85, Yates Street, Victoria.

A. CAMPBELL BEDDIE,

Deputy Provincial

Secretary.

P. S.—I may add that a telegram from the Water Commissioner, received this afternoon,
announces that he has issued water records as aforesaid.
(Signed)
A. C. R.

VANCOUVER, B. C , December 6th, 1901.

Deputy Provincial Secretary,
Victoria, B. C.
DEAR S I R , — I am obliged for your favour of the 5th instant, advising me that an Order
in Council has been passed on the 4th instant directing the Water Commissioner for the New
Westminster District to issue forthwith to the Vancouver Power Company, Limited, record
for 5,000 inches of water from Coquitlam Lake, and all the water from Trout Lake, to be
diverted, stored and applied in the manner set out in the notice of application of the said
Company, and that the said grant of water is subject to certain conditions.
I am also advised by the Water Commissioner that he has issued water records as aforesaid, and a cheque for $932, covering the fees and rentals, has been paid him to day.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

J . BUNTZEN,

General Manager B. C. Electrical Railway Co., Ltd.,
For the Vancouver Power Co., Ltd.
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VICTORIA, B. C , 6th December, 1901.

A. Campbell Reddie,
Deputy Provincial Secretary,
Government Buildings,
RE

City.

VANCOUVER POWER COMPANY.

DEAR SIR,—We have the honour to advise you that it is necessary for our clients, the
Vancouver Power Company, Limited, to file with the Department of the Interior, at Ottawa,
a certified copy of the water record, and in this connection we would like to have a certified
copy of the Order in Council that has been duly passed.
We assume that the Water Commissioner at New Westminster has been directed, in
pursuance of the statute, viz., section 136, sub-section (2), of the " W a t e r Clauses Consolidation
Act," to make the record authorised by the Order in Council, that is, 5,000 inches from
Coquitlam Lake and all the water of Trout Lake or Lake Beautiful.
We would be greatly obliged if you could let us have the certified copy asked for and the
further information referred to during to-day.
We have, etc.,
(Signed)

MCPHILLIPS, WOOTTON & BARNARD.

PROVINCIAL SECRETARY'S OFFICE,

6th December, 1901.
GENTLEMEN,—In acknowledgment of your letter of this date, and in compliance with the
request made therein, I forward herewith a certified copy of the Order in Council, dated 4th
December, instant, which authorises the issue to the Vancouver Power Company, Limited, of
records of water from Coquitlam and Trout Lakes.
In reply to the question you ask in the second paragraph, I desire to say that the Water
Commissioner for the New Westminster District was instructed on the 4th instant to issue
the said records, and that yesterday a telegram was received from Mr. Robson intimating that
the records had been made, and that this announcement was communicated to the Vancouver
Power Company last evening.
I am, etc.,
(Signed)

A. CAMPBELL REDDIE,

Deputy Provincial
Messrs. McPhillips,

Secretary.

Wootton ds Barnard,
Barristers-at-Law,
Victoria.

VICTORIA, 9th December, 1901.

The Deputy Provincial Secretary,
Government Buildings, Victoria, B. G.
SIR,—We have the honour to draw your attention to the fact that the certified copy of
the Order in Council, which you were pleased to send us with your letter of the 6th instant,
refers to a certain notice, a copy of which is attached to the report of the Honourable the
Acting Provincial Secretary bearing date the 4th instant. The Order in Council is incomplete
for our purposes to forward to the Department of the Interior at Ottawa without this notice
accompanying it. We, therefore, respectfully request that you will kindly send us a certified
copy of the notice referred to in the Order in Council. As you will notice, the notice forms
part of the grant—that is, the water is to be diverted, stored and applied in the manner set
out in the notice.
W e have, etc.,
(Signed)

MCPHILLIPS, WOOTTON & BARNARD.
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PROVINCIAL SECRETARY'S OFFICE,

10th December, 1901.
GENTLEMEN,—In complying with the application made in your letter dated the 9th, I
desire to remark that it was not considered to be necessary to furnish a- copy of the notice of
application of the Vancouver Power Company, Limited, with a copy of the Order in Council
on the 6th instant, for the reason that the said notice was received by the Water Commissioner
from yourselves as representing the Company.
I am, etc.,
(Signed)

A. CAMPBELL REDDIE, •

Deputy Provincial
Messrs. McPhillips,

Secretary.

Wootton ds Barnard,
Barristers-at-Law,
Victoria.

VANCOUVER, B. C , 12th December, 1901.

IF. S. Gore, Esq.,
Deputy Commissioner of Lands and Works,
Victoria, B. C. :
DEAR SIR,—We are instructed on behalf of the Stave Lake Power Company, Limited!
to say that they have learned that a grant of water has been recorded in favour of the
Vancouver Power Company, dated 5th December, instant, by Mr. Robson, the Commissioner,
for 5,000 inches of water out of Coquitlam Lake.
The Stave Lake Power Company sent a respectful memorial to His Honour the LieutenantGovernor in Council touching the subject of this record, calling attention, among other things,
to the fact that the Commissioner had, under the Statute, fixed the 5th December, 1901, for
dealing with the applications of certain municipalities for water rights; and the 6th December,
1901, for dealing with the applications of the Stave Lake Power Company and Vancouver
Power Company.
On the 5th December, 1901, the Commissioner advised us that the hearings of the 5th
and 6th December were postponed under instructions from the Government.
No further
information was given. Subsequently we learned of this grant.
Under the circumstances, we take it that there will be no objection to furnish us with
copies of all Orders in Council relating to this subject, and this information we would like with
as little delay as possible.
We beg also to request that, so for as may be, you will advise us as to the nature of the
instructions (if not a copy of the same) which were sent to Mr. Robson, and under which he
acted in advising us of the adjournment of these applications.
We shall be further obliged if we are informed, on the part of the authority instructing
Mr. Robson in the matter, as to the day on which we can bring forward the application of the
Stave Lake Power Company for adjudication.
Yours faithfully,
(Signed)

TUPPER, PETERS & GILMOUR.

N E W WESTMINSTER, B. C , December 21st, 1901.

S I R , — I n a letter to you dated the 6th inst, referring to the granting of a record of 5,000
inches of water on Coquitlam Lake to the Vancouver Bower Co., I assumed that the remaining
applications for water in this Lake would, if taken up at all, be passed upon by the Executive
in the same way as the Vancouver Power Co.'s application, and I requested to be advised if
this assumption was not correct. No advice on this matter has yet been received.
The solicitor for the Municipalities of Delta and Richmond is now asking that the applications of these Municipalities be heard and disposed of, and i am informed that the Stave
Lake Power Co. intends also to press for a hearing of its application as soon as the Municipal
applications have been disposed of. These applications are all for water in Coquitlam Lake,
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where the record was granted to the Vancouver Power Co. I n view of no advice having been
given as suggested in my letter of the 6th inst, am I correct in supposing that these other
applications are to be heard by the Executive ? I shall be glad of advice, so that I may give a
reply to the applicants.
I have, etc.,
(Signed)

D. ROBSON,

Government Agent.
The Honourable the Provincial
Victoria, B. C.

Secretary,

VANCOUVER, B. C , 30th December, 1901.
The Deputy Provincial Secretary,
Victoria, B. C.:
R E STAVE LAKE POWER CO., L D .

SIR,—On the 12th instant we addressed a letter to the Deputy Commissioner of Lands
and Works, and on the 13th were advised that this letter had been referred to you. We
should be obliged if you would favour us with an early reply.
We have, etc.,
(Signed)

TUPPER, PETERS & GILMOUR.

PROVINCIAL SECRETARY'S OFFICE,

8th January, 1902.
GENTLEMEN,—In acknowledgment of your letter dated 30th December, I desire to say
that my absence from Victoria has delayed a reply to your communication of the 12th idem,
addressed to the Deputy Commissioner of Lands and Works, and referred by him to this office.
Concerning the grant of water records to the Vancouver Power Company, acting under
the powers conferred by section 136 of the " W a t e r Clauses Consolidation Act, 1897," the
Lieutenant-Governor in Council directed the Water Commissioner at New Westminster to issue
the records, and I am to forward the enclosed copy of an Order in Council in this connection.
I am also instructed to send to you a copy of the Orders in Council dated 20th April,
1901, and 7th November, 1901, respectively, which reserve unrecorded water.
With regard to the date when the application of the Stave Lake Power Company can be
brought forward for adjudication, I have to request that you will address this question to the
Attorn ey-General.
I am, etc.,
(Signed)

A. CAMPBELL REDDIE,

Deputy Provincial

Secretary.

Messrs. Tupper, Peters ds Gilmour,
Barristers, dsc, Vancouver.

NEW

WESTMINSTER, B. C , Feb. 5th, 1902.

W. S. Gore, Esq.,
Deputy Commissioner of Lands ds Works,
Victoria, B.C.
SIR,—We beg to call your attention to the applications of the Municipalities of Delta and
Richmond for records of water, or reservations of water, in Coquitlam Lake.
We are acting for these Municipalities, and have been endeavouring to have this matter
finally adjusted.
We have been informed by Mr. Robson, the Government Agent here, that
these municipal applications will be heard by the Executive in Victoria, and that the date of
the hearing has not yet been fixed.
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W e desire to learn from you when this hearing will take place, and would suggest to you
as far as the Municipality of Delta and its interests are concerned, that sufficient evidence was
given at the investigation held by the Executive some months ago, so far as the claim of Delta
was concerned.
We shall also be pleased to learn when it would be convenient to have the application of
Richmond Municipality taken up.
If the evidence given in the case of Delta is not regarded
as sufficient, we shall be pleased if the two applications could be heard at the same time, as it
would be a saving of expense to our clients.
We shall be pleased by the receipt of an early intimation as to the necessity, and if so,
the date on which the hearing will take place.
We have, etc.,
(Signed)

PROVINCIAL SECRETARY'S

HOWAY & R E I D .

OFFICE,

VICTORIA, 20th February, 1902.
GENTLEMEN, —I have to acknowledge the receipt, in due course, of your letter of the 5th
instant, to the Deputy Commissioner, in which you inquire when will the Executive be prepared
to hear the applications of the Municipalities of Delta and Richmond, respectively, for records
of water from Coquitlam Lake, and to state that the matter was referred to the AttorneyGeneral, and that on receipt of his reply you will be advised as to the date in question.
I am, etc.,
(Signed)

A. CAMPBELL

REDDIE,

Deputy Provincial
Messrs. Howay ds Reid,
New Westminster.

Barristers,

VICTORIA, B . C . :
Printed by RICHARD WOLFENDKN, Printer to the King's Most Excellent Majesty.
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